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MESSAGE.
DUFFERIN.

The Governor General iransmits for the information of the Senate and
House of Commons copiss of a correspondence which has taken place with
the Right Honorablo the Secretary of State for the Colonies, relating to the
commutation of the sentence of death passed on Ambroise Lepine, for the
murder of Thomas Scott, at Fort Grarry.

Government House,
8th February, 1875.

CANADA.

opy 7. —No. 805.) GOVERNMENT HoUsE, -
O1tawa, 10th December, 1875.
My Lorp,—

I have the honor of forwarding to Your Tordship a very important
Order in Council, which my Ministers have desired me to transmit, with
the request that Your Lordship would be pleased to give it yovr most
earnest consideration,

2. The purport of the document is to move Your Lordship and the
Imperial Government {0 undertake the settlem :nt of what is known here
a8 the “ Amnesty question.”

8. The ressons for which my Minislers are desirons of seeking
Your Lordship's assistance are founded on the fact of the circumstances
out of which the * Amnesty queslion” has grown, having occurred at a
time anterior to the assumption by Canada of the Government of the
North-West. They are further impelled to adopt this course by the obvious
Smbarrassments attending the settlement of a controversy,. whose asspects
‘8re alleged to have been already modified by the intervention of Imperial
8uthority, and which are so seriously complicated by the vehement inte -
Bational antagonism which they have excited in this country. Undor these
Circumstances my advisers are of opinion that a dispassionate review of

® whole guestion emanating from so impartial a source as Her Majesty’s
overnment would tend more to tranquilize the public mind, and secare a
loyal acquiescence in whatever decision may be arrived at, than would
the case were they themselves to undertake the settlement of the dispute.

_4. Your Lordship is so well acquainted with the history of the troubles
- Which were occasioned by the somewhat precipitate attempt made in the
year 1869 to incorporate the present Province of Manitoba with the Do-
Winjon, before the conditions of the proposed union had been explained to
U8 inhabitants, that I need not do more than recapitulate the special inci-

ents which directly bear upon the suhject vnder consideration, It wiil

¢ sufficient to remind your Lord:hip that on the news of thege disturb-
Ces reaching (itawa, emissaries were despatched to Fort Garry in the
¥ersons of the Vicar-General Thibault, Colonel de Salaberry, and Mr,
onald Smith, with the view of calming the agitation w iich had arisen,

d of giving ample assurances to those whom it might concern, that both
Y8 Imperial'and the Canadian Governments were anxious tosecire to tue
) ffﬂple of the North West every right, privilege, and immunity to which

ey Ilnligl;t be entitled. Each of these personages was furnished with
-— 1

i
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coples of a Proclamation, drawn up uider the instructions of the Imperial
Government by Lord Lisgar, couched in the most conciliatory language,
and concuding with the fullowing paragraph:

“ And I do losily inform you that in case of your immediate and peace-
“able obedience and dispégsion, I shall order that no legal proceedings

“ be taken against any parties implicatod in these unfortunate breaches of
“ the law,

~“JonN Yourxa.”

5. At the time this instrument was placed in the hands of these
gentlemen, no blood had been shed, nor any very heinous crime com-
mitted ; but on arriving at their destination, taeir papers were seized by
the insurgents, and they were precluded either on this or on some other
account from issuing the Proclamation in guestion. There can be liitle
doubt, however, that its purport muat hare been known to Riel and his
partizans before the murder of Seott was perpetrated —an event which
took place some time after these three gentlemen had arrived at Fort
Garry. :

g. Subsequently, by an invitalion of the Canadian Government con-

Yt Rome Veyed {0 him when at Rome through Monsieur Langevin, Minister of

Jau, 13th, Public Works, Archbishop Taché returned to Canada, with the view of

ki e placinrrv his services at the disposal of the Dominion Giovernment. On his

Ottawa  arrival at Otfawa, he was provided with another copy of the Gorernor

¥ob. 9th.  (3oneral's Proclamation, as well as with an official letter of instructions
from the Secretary of State, Mr. Howe, of which 1 subjoin a copy :—

DEPARTMENT OF SECRETARY OF STATE FOR THE ROVINCES,
OTTAwa, 1tth February, 1870

The Very Reverend the Bishop of St. Bonifacs

My Lorp~—I am commanded by His Excellency, the Governor
General, to acknowledge and thank you for the promptitude with which
you placed your services at the disposal of this Government, and undertook
a winter voyage and journey, that you might, by your presence and
influence, aid in the repression of the uniooked-for disturbances which had
broken out in the North-West,

I have the honor to enclose for your information :— :
1. A copy of the instructions given to the Honorable Wm. McDougal
on the 28th September last;

2. A copy of a further letter of instructions addressed to Mr.
McDougall on the Tth November;

8. Copy of a letter of instructions to The Very Reverend Vicar
General Thibault on the 4th December;

4, Copy of a Proclamation issued by His Excellency, Ths Governor
Greneral, addressed to the inhabitants of the North-West Verritories by the
oxpress desire of the Quaeen ; g
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. Copy of a Iétter addressed to the Secretary of State, by Donald A.
Smith, Esq., of Montreal, on the 2ith November;

6. Copv of a letter of instructions addressed by me {o Mr, Smith, on
10th December last;

7. A semi-official letter, addressed by the Minister of Justice, on the
8rd January, 1870, to Mr. Smith ; also,

8. Copy of the Commission issned to Mr. Smith, on the 1T7th of
January, 1870,

Copies of the Proclamation, issned by Mr. McDougall, at or near
Pembina, and of the (‘ommission, issaed to Colonel Dennis, having been
printed in the Canadian papers, and widely cireulated at the Ited Rirver,
are, it is assumed, quite within your reac%, and are not furnished; but
it is important that you shonld IZnow that the proceedings by which the
lives and properties of the people of Rupert's Land were jeopardized for
& time, were at once disavowed, and condemned by the Government of
this Dominion, as you will readily discover in the despatch addressed by
me to Mr, McDougall, on the 24th of December, a copy of which is
enclosed.

Your Lordship will perceive, in these papers, the policy which it was,
and is, the desire of the Canadian Government to establish in the North.-
West. The people of Canada have no interest in the erection of institu-
tions in Rupert’s Land which public opinion condemns; nor would they
wish Lo see a fine race of people trained to discontent and ihsubordination,
by the pressure of an unwise system of government, to which DBritish sub-
Jects are unaccustomed or averse. They looked hopefully forward to the
period when institutions, moulded upon those which the other Provinces
enjoy, may be established, and, in the meantime, would deeply regret if
the civiland religious liberties of the whole population were nat adequately
-It:)rotected by such temporary arrangements as it may be prudent at present

make. :

A convention has been called, and is now sitting at Fort Garry, to
Collect the views of the people, as to the powers which they may con-
8lder jt wise for Parliament to confer, and the Local Legislature to assume,
When the proceedings of that conference have been received by the Privy
Couneil, you may expect to hear from me again; and, in the meantime,
should they be communicated to you on the way, His Excellency will' be
' g}ag to be favoured with any observations that you may have leisure to

ake,

You are aware that The Very Reverend The Vicar-General Thibault,

"nd Mesars, Donald A, Smith snd Charles de Salaberry, are already in

upert's Land, charged with a Commission from Government. Enclosed
e letters to those gentlemen, of wkich you will oblige me by takin
Charge ; and ] am commanded to express the desire of His Excellency that
You will ¢yoperate with them in their well-directed efforts to secure a
Eeacm‘ul solution of the difficulties in the North-West Territories, which
ave cansed His Lxcellency much anxiety, but which, by your joint en-
*8vours, it is hoped may be speedily removed.

1 have, &ec.,

: Joazry Hawa,
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7. At the same time his Lordship also received a letter from Lord
Lisgar to the following effect:

Governor General Sir John TYoung to FBishop Taché.

OTtTAwa, Feb. 16th, 1870.

My pEAR LORD Bisnor,—I am anxious to express to you before you
get out, the deep sense of obligation which 1 feel is due to you for giving
ap your residence at Rome, leaving the great and interesting
affairs in which you were engaged there, and wundertaking at this
inclement scason the long voyage across the Atlantic and a long
journey across this continent, for the purpose of rendering service
to Her Majesty’'s Government, and engaging in a mission in the cause of
peace and civilization. Lord Granville was anxious to avail himself of

our valuable assistance from the outset, and I am heartily glad that you
Eave proved willing to afford it so promptly and generously, You
are fully in possession of the views of my Government; and
the Imperial Government, as I inlormed vyou, is earnest in the
desiro to see the North-West Territory united to the Dominion

on equitable conditions. I neced not attempt to farnish you with

any instructions for your gnidance, beyond those contained in the tele-
graphic message sent me by Lord Granville on the part of the British

‘Cabinet, in the Proclamation which 1 drew up in accordance with that

message, and in the letters which 1 addressed to Governor McTavish, your
Viear-General, and Mr. Smith. In this lastletter [ wrote: “ All who have
¢ complaints {o make or wishes to express, to address themselves to me as
“ Her Majesty's Representative, and you may state, with the utmost confi
“ dence, that the Imperial Government has no intention of acting other-
* wise or permitting others to act otherwise than in perfect good iaith to-
« wards the inhabitants of the Red River District and of the North-West.

“ The people may rely that respect and attention will be extended to
“ the different religious persuasions, that title to every description of pro-
« perty will be carefully guarded, and that all the franchises which have
« gubsisted, or which the peoplo may prove themselves qualified to exer-
# cise, shall be duly continued or liberally conferred.

* In declaring the desire and determination of Her Majesty’s Cabinet,
« you may safely use the terms of the ancient formula, that right shall be
 done in all cases.”

I wish you, my dear Lord Bishop, a safe jonrney, and success in your
benevolent mission.

Believe me, with all respect,
Laithlully yours,
(Signed,} Joux Youxna.
Right Rev. Bishop Taché.

To this was added & private letter from Sir John Macdonald, which
will be found at page 19 of the Canadian Blue Book, and which, towards
its conclusion, contained the following paragraph : } :

“ Should the question arise as to the consumption of any stores or
« goods belonging to the Hudson Bay Company by the insurgents, yon are

4 .
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“ authorized to inform the leaders that if the Company's (Yovernment is
“ restored, not only will there be a general amnesty granted, but in case
“ the Company should claim the payment {or such stores, that the Cana-
% dian Grovernmernt will stand between the insurgents and all harm.”

8. At the time these communications were made to Archbishop ‘f'aché
no news had arrived of Riel's proceedings in regard to Scott, In the
meantime a convention of forty of the representative inhabitants of the
North West had been organize! for the purpose of hearing what Messrs,
Donald Smith, Thibault and De Salaberry, had heen commissioned
to say on behalf of the Canadian Government, and in consequence of the
representations made by Mr. Smith, the convention determined to select
and send to Ottawa three delegates, for the purpose of communicating the
demands of the people in the North West to the Dominion authorities, and ge u.
of effecting a settlement of the terms upon which they were to enter g"m‘,d
QConfederation,  After this business was concluded, the Convention n;‘},.u‘,.,
proceeded to the erection of the so-called Provisional Government, of p- 184, par.
which Riel was named the President. These occurrences took place on ﬁoﬂf_‘" 5.
the 10th of February.

9. On the 4th March, Scoit was shot,

10, Cn the %th March, Archbishop Taché arrived at Red River, and in
a letter of June 9th, 1870, he informed the Secretary of State, Mr. Howe,
that he had promised, in the name of the Imperial and Provincial
Governments, both to the insurgents generally, and to Riel and Lepine
in particular, n full amnesty for every breach of the law of which they
had been guilty, including the murder of Scott. On receipt of this
::mmunication )];t[r. Howe replied to Archbishop Taché in the following

rms i—

Honorable Joseph Howe to Archbishop Taché,

“ OrTAWa, 4th July, 1870,

“MyYy Lorp,—Your, letter of the 9th June, which reached me
* yesterday, has been laid before the Privy Council, and has received their
“ consideration.

% Your Lordship states that personally you felt no hesitation in giving
“in the name of the Canadian Government, an assurance of a complete
“amnesty.

“Your Lordship has no doubt read the debate and explanations
“ which took place in Parliament during the discussion of the Manitoba
“Bill. The question of amnesty was brought forward, and the answers
* and explanations given by the Ministers in the House of Commons were
‘:that the Canadian Government had no power to grant such an amnesty,
. 3nd that the exercise of the prerogative of mercy rested solely with Her

Majesty the Queen.

. “The Rev. Father Richot and Mr. Scott must, on their arrival, have
mformed your Lordship that, in the repeated interviews which they had
', With Bir John A, Macdonald and 8ir George E. Cartier, they were
- Qistinetly informed that the Government of the Dominion had no power
« 35 8 Government to grant an amnesty; and I wouild add that this
l’_G‘tmjerlnnexlt: is not in a position to interfere with the free action of Her

Majesty in the exercise of the Royali clemenoy.
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“ Her Majesty's Imperial Ministers can alone advise the Queen on
“ guch an important matter when called upon to do ss. No doubt can
“he entertained that Iler Majesty, advised by her Ministers, will on a
#calm review of all the circumstances discharge the duty of this high-
“ responsibility in a temperate and judicial spirit. .

“The foregoing explanalions are given to Yonr Lordship in order
“ that it may be well understood that the respongibility of the assurance
“given by Your Lordship of a complete amnesty, cannot in any way
# gttach itself to the Canadian Government.

“ The conversations to which Your Lordship alludes as having taken
“place between Your Lorlship and some Members of the Canadian
% Cabinet. when Your Lordship was in Uttawa about the middle of the
“month of February last, must necessarily have taken place with
“ reference to the proclamation issued by ilis lxcellenoy the Governor
% (Feneral, on the 6th December last, by command of Her Majesty, in
“ which His Excellency announced that in case of their immediate and
“« neaceable dispersion, he would order that no lezal proceedings he taken
* against any parties implicated in these unfortunate breaches of the law
“gat Red Kiver. ’

“ Though I have felt it my duty to be thus explicit in dealing with
“ the principal subject of your leiter, I trust I nved not assure you that your
“ zealons and valuable exertions to calm the public rind in the North
“ West are duly appreciated here, and I am confident that when you
“ regard the obstructious which have bheen interposed to the adoption.of
“ g liberal and enlightened policy for Manitoba, you will not be disposed
* to relax your exertions until tha.i;I ILolicy Sizs formally established.

" ave, &Xc,,

“ (Signed), Josgrr HowE.
“ Right Reverend, _

“The Bishop of St. Boniface,
“ Red River.”

11, Such are the circumstances ont of which has arisen the * Amnes

nestion,”~-a controversy which for these last three years has agitated the
%ominion and embarrassed its suoccessive Governments; Archbishop
Taché contending that both the Imperial and Colonial Governments were
bound by the promises of immunity he gave to Riel and his associates;
while the late Governor General, Her Majesty’s Government, and the
present and late Canadian Administrations, have declined to recognize
the force of any such oblization,

12. Last session, at the instance of those who may be supposed to
coincide with the Bishop's view of the case, a select committee of the
House of Commons was appointed to enguire into “ihe causes which re-
“tarded the granting of the amnesty announced in the proclamation of
“the Governor General of Canada, and also whether and to what extent
“ other promises of amnesty have ever been made.” A copy of the evi-
dence taken by the commitiee, together with their report, I transmit by
this mail. Although these documents supply the best materials for the
elucidation of the two points above referred to, it may be convenient that
I should subjoin a short summary of the merits of the case as it presents

6
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itself to my understauding, thouzl without pretending to exhaust the
argument on either side, .
i3. A full and complete amnesty to Ricl and the aunthors of Secott’s
death appears to be claimed on live several grounds.
Firsi,—aArchoishop Tachi claims an amnesty on the plea that he went
to Red River as a pleaipotentiary, empowered both by the Jrmperisl and
the Dominion Governments tosecure the tranquility of the country by the
issue of such assurances of immunity to those engaged in the recent dis-
turbances as he should deem fit. In support of this view he founds himself,
as he himsell states, pages 33-1 of the Canada Biue Book: First, as regards
the Imperial Government, on .ord Lisgar's letter and proclamation, and
Secondly, as regards the Local Government, on the paragraph 1 have page1s
already quoted in Sir John Macdonald’s communication of the 16th Feb- CanadaB.
ruary, 1870. I confess I do not think that his Lordship’s argument can be
sustained. In the first place, the Archbishop's claim to such extensive
powers is certainly invalid. The nature of his position is clearly detined
in Mr, Howe's oflicial dispaich of the 16th February, 1<70. The instruc- Fage 1t
tions already conveyed to Messrs. Thibault, de Salaberry and Smith, are pook., ne
communicated to him as additional guides for his conduct, and he is fur-
ther invited to associale himsel!, and to act conjointly with these perrons.
There are, therefore, no grounds for regarding the mission or powers of
the Bishop as differing either in character or extent from those entrusted to
the gentlemen who had preceded him; and thereis certainly no intimation
- in his instructions that he was aunthorized to promulgate a pardon in the
Queen’s name for a capital felony,—still less can it be contended that he
was empowered to expauge, on his own mere motion, a principal term
from a Royal Proclamation, Mr. Smith and his colleagues Lad been
already {urnished with Lord Lisgar's Proclamation, but so far {rom con- see X7,
sidering that docnwent as conveying a warrant of immaunity to Riel, Mr. Buiths,
Bmith expressly states that after the murder of Scott he refused to speak Imp. o]
With bim. On a reference, moreover, to the wording of the oniy sentence 2ok, -
in Lord Lisgar's Proclamation which proffers grace to the insurgents, it 75" "
becomes self-evident that it had in contemplation those minor political
offouces of which news had reached the ears of the Government when
the document was jramed. :
14, That this was its intention becomes even more apparent when we
~ read the sentence in Nir John Macdonald’s letter, to which the Bishop next
ippeals. In that communication Sir John Macdonald says,—* Should the Pageis,
" question arise as to the consumption of any stores or goods belonging to xogi Tat
“the Hudson Buy Comnpany by the insurgents, you are authorized to par.
:: inform the leaders that if the Company's Government is restored, not only
. Wiil there be u general amnesty granted, but in case the Company should
. Cluim the payment for such stores, that the Canadian Government will
stand between the insurgents and all harm” It would seem imnpossible
o expand the permission thus conveyed to the Bishop by Sir Joun, to
Promise the rebels protection irom the monetary demands of the Hudson
4y Company, into an authority o condone such a savage murder as that
of Scolt’s. But even were this point to be conceded, there wounld still
Tewain an insurmountable difficnity in the way of proving Monseigneur
achié’s case, The terms of pardon, both in Lord Lisgar's Proclamation
-Mud Bir John's letter, were made con';litional,-in the one, “ on the immaedi-
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“ate and peaceable obedience and dispersion of the insurgents,” and in the
other, “on the restoration of the Company's Government.” _'

15. But npne of these requirements were complied with. Bcott was
put to death soms weeks after the arrival of Messrs. de Salaberry, Thi-
bault, and Smith, to whom the proclamation had been originally confided,
and by whom its contents, at all events, must have been communicated to
Riel before the accomplishment of that tragedy; and theugh immediatel
after the Bishop's advent, and at his instance, one half of the Hnglish

risoners were Téleased, the rest -wore kept in prison for more than a week
onger ; Riel and his assoviates still-remained in arms, continued to prey
upon the goods. within their reach, and persisted in the exercise of thetr
illegal authority. - It is true many considerations may be adduced te miti-
gate the culpability of the latter portion of these proceedings; but be that
as it may, they manifestly barred the effect of the conditional promises of
forgiveness which the Bishop, even from his own point of view, was alone
anthorized to. announce: o '
- '16. 1 understand His Lordship farther to plead that the nltimate ne-
goliations, which secured to the North-West the constitutional rights they
enjoy underthe Manitoba Act, directly flowed from the assurances of a
complete smpesty which he promnlgated ; but although it would be diffi-
cult to exagperate either the purity of the motives by which this Prelate
was actuated in all thatho did and said, or to over-estimate the self-sacti-
Scing patriotism which induced him to tear himself from the attractions of
Roine, in order to encounter the hardships of a winter journey, for the-
sake of his fellow countrymen in Red River, or to deny that his exhorta-
tions and remonstrances had an immediate and beneficial effect in restrain-
See Mr. D. ing Riel and his companiens, and in superinducing a feeling of security in
ormative, ‘Winnipeg, it must still be remembered that the people of the North-West
sge 144" had chosen their delegates, and had consented to treat with the Canadian
B Bt~ Government some weeks before the Bishop had appeared upon the scens,
In conclusion, it is to be noted that immediately Mr. Howe, the Secretary
of State, received the information of ‘the promise made by His Lordship to
Crs. Blue Riel.and Lepine, he st once warned him that he had done so on his own
Book.  responsibility, and without the authority of the Canadian Government,

17. The Archbishop refers to a private letter of Sir George Cartier's
a8 having neutralized the langmage of Mr. Howe's official communication ;
but to doctrine of this description’] cannot subseribe, In the first place, 1

ege 2, . do not think the letter in question bears the interpretation put upon it by
st Blus the Archbishop ; and even if it ‘did, it mmst be held that no private commu.
nication made by a single member of an Administration without the cogni-

- zance of his col agehs,' ‘can override an official despatch written in their
name and on their behalf by tho head of the Department gpecially respon-

sible for .the conduct of the business in hand. Were such a view to pre.

. vail, every Government, and the Crown itself, would be at the-mercyof any
inconsiderate, rash or treacherous member of a miniatry.

. 18. The view taken by Bir John Macdonald, who was Premier at the tims
that the Archbishop left for the North-West, of His Lordship’s powers and of
the nature of his misxion, is set forth, in the honourable gentleman’s evidence

fage 10, 8t page 100 of the Canadian Blue Book, and I noed not say isentirely confirm-
x.  story of the conceptions I have derived from the written instructionsthe
Arerﬁ- rchbishop received and the oonespo:denoe-whioh toek place with him,
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19. Under these cireumstances, I am of opinion ihat the Crown is rot
commilted to the pardon of the murderers of Neott, npon the ground that
tl{l{g Archbishop was in any sense authorized to mnke a promise to-that
efiect.

- 20, The next plea urged by those who demand a full and complete
amnesty, is based upon the occurrences which took place during the visit
of Judge Black and Messrs. Ritchot and 8cott to Ottawa, in April, 1870, as
delegates from the people of the North-West, and on the alleged purport of
the conversations which took place between Archbishop Taché Lord
Lisgar, and Sir George Cartier, at Niagara. With respect to the transac-
tions of this date, we have unfortunately no public correspondence or other
official intercommunications in which they have been recorded, and so far
a8 regards the individn.] statements of the personages concerned, there is
unhappily a direct confiict of assertion.

21. On the one band, Abbé Ritchot and theArchbishop state positively
that an amnesty to Riel was explicitly promised both by Lord Lisgar, Sir
Clinton Murdoch, Sir John Macdonald, and Sir George Cartier. On the
other hand, this statemrnt is denied in the most emphatic manner by each
. and all of these gentlemen. The Abbé Ritchot's affidavit, in which a
history of his interviews with the Governor General and other members of
the Administration is set forth with considerable particularity, will he Page?,
found at page seventy-two of the Canadian Blue Look The denial of the Qan. Blu
correctness of the Abbé Ritchot’s asseverations is conveyed, first, in a
despatch to Lord Kimberley from Lord Lisgar, dated 25th April, 1872, and
In a letter irom the same nobleman to Sir George Cartier, dated the 21st
February, 1873, page 104 of the Blue Book ; in a letter from Sir Clinton Page 104,
Murdoch to Mr Herbert, dated 5th March, 1873, on page 104, ond again in g“v Blue
another letter of the 6th March of the same year; in a letter from Sir pa

PO?:E 104
George Cartier to 8ir John Macdonald, dated 8th February, 1873 ; and in Bnd 108 e
Bir John Macdonald's evidence, page 107. But a still more significant pook. "
]L]fht is thrown upon what occurred, by a despatch from Rir Clinton gﬂsﬂ }3015:
urdoch to Sir Frederick Rogers, dated 28th April, 1870, page 193 of the Book,
Blue Book. This communication was contemporary with the event Page 107,
Yecorded. The statement made was not a reply to any leading question, pook.
lor evoked by any special reference. It was simply a narrative drawn up Pagelss,
for the information of the Under Secretary of State for the Colonies, as to gan Blue
¢ purport of Sir Clinton Murdoch’s conversation with hisinterlocutor, the
bbé Ritchot, immediately after the interview had cccurred. In the fitth
reyraph of that document, page 1%#8 of the Dlue Book, Sir Clinton pyge 3
Murdoch says:~*The 19th condition would secure an indemnity to Riel Can. Blus
. 2nd his abettors for the execution of Scotr, and to all others for the Bo%
. Plunder of the Hudson Bay Cowpany's stores, and for other damages
. Sommitted during the disturbances; concessions which this Government
. tould not venture even if it had the power to grant, while the condition
.. Which, though not contained in the terms, was conveyed to Judge Black
, dud the other delegates in writing, that whatever was sgreed to here
" ll:luat be subject to confirmation by the Provisional Goveinment, would
% 2ve involved a recognition of the authority of Liel and his associates.
y * * * * * * * ¥ %
Under these circumstances there wasno choice but to reject these terms.”

22_:“01' ;ourse, it is a yery invidious office to pronounce an opinion as
—t 9 )
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to the rcepective accuracy of statements so conflicting, emanating from
such eminent personages, and adduced, 1 have no doubt, by every in-
dividual concerned in the most pezfect good Jaith ; Lut when it 1s remem-
bhered that Lord Lisgar hud not even the power to make the promise
which he is alleged to have given, and that he and Sir Clinton Murdoch
and 8ir John Macdounald are so perfeetly in uccord as to what passed, one
can only conclude that the AbLE Ritehot, throngh the unfortunate circums-
staifce of these conversations having been conducted in a language with
which he was not fumiliar, must have derived a totally wrong impression
of what had been said.

28. This view of the case isin a great measure confirmed by the
evidence of Mr, Sulte, page 181 of the Blue Book, in which he states that
one day Father LRitchot said 1o him in reference to his recent -interview
with Lord Lisgar—* As 1 do not understand English very well, [ am not

Fage 18l satisfied with what His Excellency said to me at our interview.” From

Book.  this it may be gathered that the reverend gentleman has shown some
precipitancy in consigning to an affidavit so elaborate a record of a con-
versation ol which he himself admits he carried away an imperfect appre-
hension. '

24. Cognate to this branch of the Inqniry are the allegations advanced
by Archbishop Taché as to his interview with Lord Lisgar at Niagara, 23rd
July, 1870. The Archbishop does not appear to maintain that upon this
occasion Lord Lisgar made him any specilic promise, but he says that His
BLxcellency, being unwilling 1o enter into any discussion upon Red River
affairs, referred him to 8ir George Cartier, and that Sir George Cartier then

5.3., sn, repeated those assurances, as on Lord Lisgar’s behalf, to which the Arch-

Qen tlue hichop attaches so much importance. As the lacts connected with this

" incident are fully set forth in the Archbishop’s statement on page 46 of the
Blue Book, I need not further refer to them.

25. With regard, however, to Sir George Cartier's general attifude,
language, and correspondence, in reference to the whole of this subject, I
am ready to admit that there appears to have been a certzin amount of
ambiguity and want of explicitness in his utterances, which undoubtedly
encouraged the Archbishop, Father Ritchot and others, to entertain larger
expectations In respect to the extent of the suggestcd amnesty than he
was justified in execiting.

26. I do not for a moment imagine that Sir George Cartier intended
to mislead these gentlemen, but he evidently himself leant to the opinion
that the clemency of the Crown might be extended with adrantage to
Riel and his associates; and his naturally sanguine temperament led him to
anticipate that as the public excitement calmed down, and years
went by, he would have sulfficient inliuence to obtain immunity
for those in whose behalf the Archbishop and Abbé Ritchot were
interesting themselves. As a consequence, the tenor of his language
implied that it only matters were peaceably settied in Red River, and
the population quietly submitted to the new order of things, a settlement
would ultimately be arrived at satisfactory to all parties, But though
this forecast of events was in his mind, and coloured his thoughts and
language, it does not appear from the evidence, that he ever made any
specific promise in respect of the murderers of Scott. On the contrary,
he was always very careful to state that the power of granting a pardon

10
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to them did not reside with the Canadian Government, but with the
Queen and HHer Tmperial advisers. As Sir John Macdonald observes, he
and the Abbg Ritchot and the Archhishop appear to have heen moving
“in different plancs.” DBoth make use of the word “ammnesiy,” but Sir
George always reforred to an “ amnesty”’ as applicable to the general
body o! insurgents, and to political offences, whereas the Archbishop and
the Abbé were solely preoccupied with the thought of securing an
“amnesty” for lliel and his fellows. De this, however, as it may, to my
apprehension it cannot be for & moment contended that Sir George
Cartier's casnal conversations and private letters can bind the Imperial
Government,

7. The third plea on account of which a {ull and plenary amnesty is
demanded is that the authorities who o1dered Scott’s execution were a de
Jacte Government, duly constituted by the will of the community, and that
it was consequently a i\gitimate proceeding, and only reprehensible as an
error of judgment. I think it but fair, in reference to those who hold this
opinion, to call your Lordship’s attention to the fact that the Convention
which erected the so-called Provisions] Government and placed Riel at its
head, war composed of a number of French and English delegates, fuirly
elected {rom the population at large ; that persons of very great respecta-
bility were members of it, and took part in its proceedings; that Mr Donald
Smith, the Canadian Commissioner, and the person who was instructed
to take up the Government of the North West on behalf of the Hudson
Bay Company in the event of Governor McTavish being precluded by ill-
health from exercising his {unctions, appeared before it as the exponent of
the views of the Canadian Government; and that the delegates it chose
Were subsequently recognized as duly authorized to treat with the
Dominion lxecutive on behalf of the North West community. An
attempt has been made to show that these delegales really held their
appointment {rom Riel, and were to be considered as commissioned by his
Government. This, however, was not 5o ; they were selected, and the
terms they were instructed to demand were seitled, before the election of
Riel to the so-called Presidency. On the other hand, it is to be noted that
Wwhen the proposal to constitute a Provisional Government was mooted in the
Convention, a certain portion of the English Deputies declined to take part
n the proceedings, until they had ascertained whether or no Governor

eTavish, the legal ruler of the territory, still considered himself vested
Wwith authorily. A deputation accordingly was appointed to wait upon
im in his sick chamber, for this gentleman had unfortunately during
Many previous wecks been suffering from the mortal disease of which he
8von after died. In reply to their inquiries, Governor McTavish told them
that he considered his jurisdiction had heen abolished by the Proclamation
oF Mr, McDougall, that he was “a dead man,” and that they had, therefore,
etfer construct & Government of their own to maintain the peace of the

- Country. Returning to their colleagucs, the deputation announced to the
Convention what Governor McTavish had said, and, as a result, Riel and
8 colleagues were nominated to their respective offices. DBut though thesa
Proceedings thus received a certain sanction at the hands of the repre-
Sentatives of the population of the North West, it does not appear to me
fo aflect Lticl's enlpabilily with respect to Scott. In the first place, as has
been very clearly laid down by the Chief Justice of Manitoba, in his

11
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charge to the jury on the Lepine trial, itis not possible for any lawful
exrculive authority to spring into existence within Her Mujesty's Do-
minilons, unless it emanate {romn Hersell. . Without, however, laying too
much stress upon the purely legal aspect of this part of the question, it is
very evident that the killing of NScott was not an exercise of jurisdiction
Lkuown to any {orm of law, but an inhuman slaughter of an innocent man,
aggravated by circamstances of extraordinary brutality. 1r echmpany with
a cerfain number of other Englishmen, Scutt had started from a place
called Portage la Prairie, with the view apparently of endeavouring to
rescne a number of persons who up to ihis time Riel had been holding
prisoners in Fort Garry, but at the entreaty of those who were anxious to
prevent the outburst of Civil War, the party were induced to give ub their
project and to return home. Scott and his companions were captured as
they werc passing back to their own part of the country. The utmost
atleged against Scott is that he used violent language in prison, and that
he had alluded to an intention of captyring Riel and retaining him
as a hostage for the release of the prisoners already referred to; but even
these allegations were not proved, nor, had they been proved ten times
over, could they have rendered him liable to serious punishment. Jven
the decencies of an ordinary drum head court martial were disregarded,
The trial, il it can be so termed, was condncted in the absence of the
accused, who was confronted with no witnesses, nor furnished with any
indictment, uor allowed to plead for his life. The further details
of the tragedy are so horrible, if the statements in the evidence can be
relicd on, that | will not shock your Lordship by repeating them; suffice
it to say, that all the special ]‘3eading in the world will not prove the
killing of Scott to be anything else than a eruel, wicked, and unnecessary
crime ; nor, had the origin of Riel's authority been even less guestionable,
would it have invested hitn with the right of taking away the life of a
fellow-citizen i1 s0 reckless and arbitrary a manner, 1 have, therelore, no
hesitation in_concluding that auy claim for the extension of an amnesty
to 1iiel fonnded on the assumption that the murder of Scott was a judicial
execulion by a legitimately constituted authority, must be disallowed.

28. A fourth consideration occasionally urged, though not with any
very great persistence, by the apologists of Riel, is that when Sir Garnet
Wn{’se]ey’s forces had taken possession of the 7Territory of Red River, s
man ol the name of Goulet, one of those who had been concerned in
the murder of Scott, was pursued by certain persons, of whom twe be-
longed to a Canadian regiment, until he was frightened into the river and
drowned in his attempt {o swim across it. How far the foregoing is an
accurate account of this transaction I know not. If a murderous assault of
this descripiion can be brought home in a court of justice to any indi-
viduals, they sught, of course, to be dealt with in due course of law; but
it is idle to ailege such a circumstance as exonerat:ng the authors of another
deed of bloed.

29. There is a further plea which has heen sometimes urged, not in-
deed as of itseli suflicient to command an amnesty, but as communicating
a cumulative force to those already mentioned, namely, the transmission
of money lo Ricl from the Government of the day on condition of his
leaving the couniry, and his subsequent resignation of.his seat for Pro-
vencher in order o make room Jor Sir George Cartier; but with

12
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transactions of this nature the Imperial Government cannot be expected
to concern itself, :

~ 80. I therefore pass on to the filth consideration, which is adduced as
a reason why the Imperial Government should concede an amnesty to the
murderers of Scott; and {o the plea which I am about to exhibit, I must
ask your Lordship to give your earnest attention, as it appears to me
to involve the consideration of a semi-legal question of very great moment,
the ultimate decision of which will not only affect the case of Riel, but also
that of the prisoner Lepine, now left for execution in Winnipeg gaol.

81. In the year 18(1a rumour prevailed in the Province of Manitoba—
at that time incorporated with the Dominion, and under the jurisdiction of
Her Majesty's Lieutenant Governor, the Honourable Mr. Archibald—~that a
considerable body of Fenians were gathered along its southern frontier,
and were prepared to make a very formidable irruption over the border.
In order to understand the gravity of the sitnation, it must be remembered
that the leader of this movement was & man of the name of O'Donoghue,
who had been associated with Riel in his insurrectionary movement, A
very considersble probability consequently existed that O'Donoghue and
his people might be acting in concert with-the French leaders of the pre-
vious revolt. Mr. Archibald was alone, cut off by distance from the advice
and countenance of the central authorities, and thrown entirely upon his
own resources. He had no milttary forces worth speaking of with which
to confront the invaders, and he was administering a Province inhabited
by distinet nationslities and distracted by differences of religious faith,
Only a fow months before, a considerable proportion of its population had
been arrayed in arme against the Queen’s authority and their fellow-sub-
jects. TUnder these circumstances it can be readily understood that a per.
gon in Mr. Archibald’s situation would feel it his prirnary duty to sacrifice
every other interest to the defence of the Province over which he presided,
and to the safety of the population for whose wellare he was responsible,
Acting upon these considerstions Governor Archibald determined to ap-
Peal to the loyalty of the French Metis and their leaders ; but these last
Were no othera than Riel, Lepine, &c., the very men for whose apprehen.
8ion writs had been issued on a capital charge. Notwithstanding the ano-
laly of such a procedure, Mr. Archibald concluded to enter into relations
With these persons. The account of what he did and the reasons which
guided his conduet are set forth in a very perspicnous manner in a narra- Page 133,
tive which will be found at page 189 of the Blue Book. Cas. Blus

32. From the statements therein contained it will be observed that =
the Lieutenant Governor reviewed the troops which had been collected
Snder the command of Riel, Lepine and their companions, that he ac-
Cepted their services, that he promised them at least a temporary im-
Munity from molestation on account of the crime of which they were
&ccuged, that he shook hands with them, that he received a letter signed

Y them, and that through his Secretary he addressed to them an official pyge 141,
Teply, complimenting them on the loyalty they had shown and the as. Can, Blde
Matance they had rendered. He further states that he has convineed Boak.

Mgelf—thongh Sir John Macdonald appears io have had »uisgivings on

8 point-—that this exhibition of fidelity was genuine and bonn fide, and

h t it largely contributed to the preservation of Her Majesty’s Dominions

Tom jnsnlt and invasion. In short, he is satisficd, to use his own laa-
- 18
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guage, that “if the Dominion has at this moment a Trovinee {o defend
“and not one to conquer, they owe it to the policy of forbearance. If
«T had driven the French half-breeds into the hands of the enemY:
« ' Donoghne would have been joined by all the population between the
« Assineboine and the froutier, Fort Garry wonld bave passed into 1he
¢ hands o! an armed mob, and the English settlers to the north of the
« Agsineboine would have suffered horrors it makes me shudder to con-
“ template.”

83. Of conrse I am not prepared to say whether or no the Lieutenant
Governor's appreecialion of the necessities of his situation, and of the con*
sequences of a different line of action, are correct or not; but it such be
the deliberate opinion of an undou*tedly able, prudent and conscientious
man,—of & person whose successful administration of Manitoha ha$
heen rewarded by promotion 1o a more important post, I do no
think it.is competent {or us to go behind it, o lo act upon a diffarent
assurnptlon

3%+, The legal, or rather constitutional, qnestion then ariscs, to what
ettent is the Crown of Ehgland committed by the acts and declaration®
of ils Licutenant?~—those aets and declarations never having been dis
avowed or repudiated by the central authority of the Dominien, or by 1he
representative of the lome Government. ‘Although my experience i
such matters does not enable me to speak with any great anthority, I con-
fess 1 should have diffienlty in convincing myself that after the Governor
of & Province has put arms into the hands of a rubject, and has invi
him to risk his life—for that, of course, is the implicd contingency, in de
fence of Her Majesty’s erown and diznity, and for the protection of hef
territory,—with a {ull knowledge at the time that the individual in gques
tion was amenable to the luw for crimes previously committed,—the Exe
cutive if any longer in a position to pursue the person thus dealt with a8
a felon. Thp acceptance of the service might be held, I imagine, to bsf
the prosecution of the offinder; for, undesirable as it may be that a grest
ceriminal should: oo unpunished, it wonld be still more pernicious that the
Goverument 0_[ _the country should show a want of fidelity to its engage-
ments, or exhibil a narrow spirit in its interpretation of them. 1t is i
this apprehension that I have ventured to call espacial attention to this
last of the pleas for “ amnesty.”

85. I must ask your Lordship to remember that in the foregoing brief
obhservations, I have attempted to deal with hut a few of the facts an
incidents _disp]ayed in the evidence ; neither do I pretend to have repro
duced with anything appreaching completeness the various arguments
which either have been or may be adduced in support of the conﬂicﬁf}%
views ol the contending parties. But my shortcomings in this respect !
be more than supplicd by the materials collected m the accompanying Blue
Book, where each individual in any way implicated in these transactions h8#
had an opportumity of explaining his conduct and enforcing his opinions.
only object has been to save vour Lordship trouble by a preliminary €0
ordination of the elements of the controversy. In order, however, that the
defence may not lack all the nssistance to which it may be Icgitirnatl?l?r
entitled, I have thought it right to enclose two very able papers marke
A and B, which have been framed for the purpose of emlkodying within &
short compass the views of those who have convinced themselves that th?

14
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Yarious circumstances referred 1o require the issne of an amnesty.

84. 1 have further the honor to append a petition addressed to me by yig,
the Catholic Archbishop and Bishops of the Provinee of Quebee, drawn Ealosurs
up in the same sense. No. 3.

87. Perhaps wy duty as regards the matter in hand will not be alto-
gether completed uwnless [ transmit to your Lordship some idea of the
Reneral view tuken of this question by the popnlation at large. With
Yepard to the French section of Her Majesty’s subjects, I may say that
though there are probably few of them who do not regard the death of

cott as a regrettable event, they are united to a man in the opinion that
he part played by Riel in the North West was thut of a brave and spirited
atriot; that it is principally to him and to those who acted with him that
anitoba owes her present privileges of self-government and her parity
Ofrank and standing with hersister Provinces. They are equally convinced
that the Grovernment of Canada and of Her Majesty are bound by the
Promises of 1he Archbishop, and that the government Riel established at
ed River was authoritative and légitimate ; nor do I think will they ever
® persuaded that the language held by Sir George Cartier did not imply
% direct and explicit assurance of immunity to ike mnrderers of Scott, on
eir gubmission to the new order of things established under the auspices
fthe Manitoba Act, and by the advent of Lieutenant Governor Archibald
t Fort Garry,

38. On the other hand, a considerable portion of the people of Ontario
Tesent the notion that a Catholic Archhishop should have usurped a plenary
Power of pardon in respect of men who had so cruelly put to death an in-
Bocent fullow countryman of their own. They regard Riel as a dicloyal
Tebel, as well as a murderer, and they would look npon the escape either

1iim or of Lepine {rom punishment as an almost intolerable miscarriage
OF justice. At the same time the larger proportion of them feel that vari.

s circumstances have occurred to complicate the situation, and 1o render

8 Capital Sentence impossible of execntion, and even amongst the more

xtreme secticm of those who are animated by sentiments of intense sym-

Pathy for Scott, there isto be observed, as faras I can judge from the news-

E:g‘&‘};s, a moderation and reasonableness which does them considerabie
1¢,

_ 89, Itonly remains for me to add that even shounld it be decided 1hat the
obhg?.tions imposed upon us by the procedure of Licutenant Governor
i Tchibald are less compromising than I am inclined 1o consider them, and
o it the Crown is quite untrammelled in its action, Ystill think that the vari-
Bm’ circumstances I have referred to in this despatch, require the capital
aentence of Lepine to be commuted by the clemency of Her Majesty into
arm“(‘h milder punishment.. This commutation, when the proper time
M"“‘B. I propose to order vn my own respousibility, under the powers

¢orded to me by my instructions.
Rbl‘;o' On the other hand, 1 {eel very strongly that it would shock the
is ic sense of justice were Hiel to be visited with o lesser penalty than
B%:SSO(:lgte. In the estimation of all those who consider the killing of
ot t a crime, Llicl is held to be the principal culprit, and, as a matter ‘of
Rie] Whatever promises were made by Lieutenant (overnor Archibald to
wg Were also extended to Lepine. If, therefore, the latter is required to
erge 2 term of imprisonment, it appears to me.that the Executive will
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be precluded from exercising any clemency towards Riel, until he shall
have surrendered himself to justice, and, on conviction, have submutted to
& similiar penalty.

I have, &c,,

(Signed),  DUFFERIN.

The Right Honorable
The Earl of Carnarvon,
&e., &c, &e.

ENCLOSURE No. 1.

—

CoPyY of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved

by His Eucellency the Governor General sn Council, on the 4th day of
December, 1874,

The Committee of Council have had under consideration the ques-
tions which arose from the troubles in our North-West territories in 1869
and 1870, prior to the annexation of that country to the Dominion, which
have disturbed the public mind so much from that time to the present.
It is exceedingly desirable to reach a permanent settlement as soon as
" possible, which will set at rest the existing agitation concerning the grant-
ing or withholding of an amnesty for the offences committed in that
country during the insurrection.

The difficulties which stood in the way of the Dominion Government
endeavoring to close the controversy by using its utmost authority to
punish or pardon, and in June, 1873, asking the interposition of Imperial
authority to deal with s question upon which there is so serions a division
of opinion in Canada, still exiast, if indeed they have not been aggravated
by subsequent events. .

During the last session of the Dominion Parliament, the House of
Commons appointed a select committee to inquire into the canses of the
insurrection, and also to what extent promises were made to the actors
therein of a full amnesty for the political offences there committed by
any persons holding official positions.

The publication of the report of this committee has placed the public
in possession of all the evidence that could be collected bearing upon the

uestion of amnesty, as well as the correspondence of the insurgents and
their friends with the Government, and the relations of Riel and his chief
associates with the Local and Dominion Governments subsequent to the
quelling of the insurrection.

The Government of the Dominion, in a minute of Council dated June
4th, 1878, requested Your Excellency to bring the matter before Her
Majesty's Government, in order that such course might be taken as might
be consistent with the interests of justice and best for the gquiet of the
country. ' -

Tﬂ'e Right Honorable Lord Kimberley, Secretary of State for the Col-
onies, in his despatch of July 24th, 1878, in reply to the minute referred
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to, expressed the willingness of Her Majesty’'s Government to take upon
themselves the respousibility of dealing with the question of amnesty.

The reasons which then made a reference of the question to Her
Majesiy’s Government desirable, have been intensified by later events.
The Committee of Council therclore respectfully request that Your Hx-
cellency may be pleased to bring the subject again under the notice of
the Imperial Government, and convey the desire of this Government that
they will now deal with the whole matter in such a way as existing cir-
cumstances may.seem to justify. The Committee also recommend that
Your Excellency may forward with this minunte a copy of the Ileport-of
the Select Committee of the House of Commons, for the information.of
Her Majesty's Government.

{Certified),
WM. HIMSWORTI,

CLrag Privy Councit,

ENCLOSURE No. 2.

A Son Excellence le Uomte de DUFFERIN, Gonverneur-Général, ele,
ete., ute.

L'honorable requéte des sonssignés, Archevéque et Kvéques Catholiques
de la Province de Québec, représente humblement & votre Excellence,—

Qu'ils ont appris avec chagrin 1'état de trouble ou se trouve mainte-
nant la Province de Manitobe, et qu'ils craignent que cet état ne s'aggrave
-8 'on n'y apporte un prompt remede.

Que ce reméde ne peut étre qu'une amnistie pleine et entiére en faveur
de tous les habitants de la dite Province, pour tout crime ou délit commis '
i l'oceasion des troubles politiques qui ont en lieu antérieurement a la mise

_en force de 1'Acte dit de Manitoba. : '

Qu'on ne peut se dissimuler que cette amnistie n'ait £&té promise de la

Manisre la plus formelle par le Gouvernement, en 1870, lorsqu’il députa

onseignenr A. Taché, Archevéque de Bt. Boniface, auprés de son peuple
pour l'engager & se soumettre an nouvel ordre de choses réglé par le Gou-
Vernement Impérial.

Qu'il est certain que ce digne Prélat, que I'on avait prié instamment de
venir pour cela de Rome, eut refusé de se charger d’'une pareille mission &'il
Sut pu -préveir quon mettrait en doute la validité des promesses gu'on
Vavait chargé de faire ou que du moins il et exigé qu'on lui donnat un

Ooument qui le mit & I'abri de la responsabilité dont il allait se charger
Vis-3-vie de son peuple. |

. Que les soussignés ressenient vivement la situation compromettante
O se tronve leur digne collégue par suite de l'inexécution des promesses
ue le Gouvernement lui avait faites, et que, si on ne s’empresss de la
Ohere cesser, il serait difficile de conserver entre le Gouvernement et les
o fs de 1'Eglise Catholique en Canads, cette confiance mutuelle qui a
} Rtribué efficacement jusqu'a ce jour & faire régner la paix et la bonne

onie dans la Puissance.
11—-3 1%
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Que la dite amnistie ayant été promise sans limites doit étre accordée
comme telle pour mettre fin & Virritation causée par-le résunltat du proces
Lépine, non-senlement dans la dite Province de Manitoba, mais encore
dans les autres parties de la Puissance, qu'elle est nécessaire pour mettre
fin 4 des discussions dangereuses qui troublent la paix et retardent la pros-
périté générale. : _

(Yest pourquoi les soussignés prient Votre Excellence de vouloir bhien
prendre leur requéte en coneidération, et user de la juste influence dont
Elle jouit auprées du Gouvernement Impérial, pour obtenir que l'amnistie
promise soit proclamée au plus t6t et qu'il soit mis fin a Vagitation et a
linguniétude qui régne i ce sujet parmi les loyanx sujets de Sa Majeste,
dens la Puissance du Canada. '

+ K. A., Arch. de Québec,
+ Ig., Ev. de Montréal,
+ C., Ev. de-Bt. Hyacinthe,
+ L. F.,, Ev. de Trois-Rivieres,
+ JeanN, Ev. de 8. G. de Rimouski,
i E. C, Ev. de Gratianopolis,
t A., Ev. de Sherbrooke,
1 J. THOMAY, Ev. d'Ottaws
Provinoce de Québec, :
Novembre, 1874,
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ENCLOSURE A.

MEMORANDUM ON REPORT OF THE S8ELECT COMMITTEE TO ENQUIRE
INTO THE CAUSES OF THE DIFFICULTIES IN THE NORTH-WEST
TERRITORY IN 1869-70 .

The evidence takon befors the Select Committee to enguire into the causes of
the difflculties in the North-West Territory in 1869-70, contains important revelations.
The principal, and it may he said the sole Eoint of interest in that enguiry, was
to ascertain whether or not a general amnesty had been promised to the partios im-
plicated in those difficalties —by whom, and under what authority it was promiseid.

Tho troubles in the North-Weet broke out unexpectedly. Thoy are mainly
attributable to tho hasty and inconsiderate manner in which surveys were entered
upon by Dominion offieialy, of lands which the half-breeds considered theirs; (o the
fact that a transfer was mado 1y the Hudson Bay Company, and s Lieutenant-Gov-
ernor appointed, without any notice to or consideration for the people of the territory.
The opposition, which might easily have been satisfied by slight gunarsntee, became
intenmﬁ)gd by the hanghty condnct of Mr. MeDougall, which brought about an open
and armed resistance to the Dominion authorities.

On tho first intimation of those troubles, the Dominion Government summoned
Archbishop Tachg, then at Rome, who, on his arrival, was reyuested by Bir John
Young, then Governor-Goneral, on behalf of the Imperial a.ut'}xorities, and by the
Canadian Government, to proceed to the North-West, and use every offort to pacify
tho country. His instructions woere most ﬁenera_l in their character, and his course
of nction left almost entirely to his own judgment and discéretion. ,

On the 16th of February, 1870, the Governor General wrote to the Archbishop :—
“ Lord Granville was anxious to avail himsolf of your valuable assistance from the
“ out-set, and I am heartily glad that you have proved willing to afford it so promptly
‘“and ao gencrously, Yonare fully in possession of the views of my Government; and
* the Imporinl Government, as [ informod yon, is oarnest in the Gesire to sec the
H Nnrth-&zﬁt Territory nnited to the Dominion on equitalle conditions,” “]1
“ need not attoinpt to fuenish you with wny instractions for your guidance, beyond those
“ contained in the telegraphic message sent to me by Lord Grunville on the part off
“ the British Cabinet, in the Proctamation (that of tﬁe Gth December, 1869) which |
“drew ap in sccordance with that message, and in the letters which 1 addressed to
‘: Governor McTavish, your Viear-General, and Mr. 8mith. C e e e e e T
) In declaring the desire and determinatiou of Her Majesty’s Cabinet, you may safely

use the torms of' the old formula: that right shall be done in ol caxes.”
« ... The proclamation referred to containcd the following passage: “ And I do lastt
., Inform you that in case of your immediato and peaccablo obedience and dispersion,
“ shall order that no logal proceedings be taken against any parties implicated in
these unfortunate breaches of the law."
T On tho same day, 16th February, Sir John A, Macdonald wrote to Avchbisho
~aché: “Should the question arise as to the consumption of the storos or gaods
“ belonging to the Hudson Bay Company Ly the insurgents, yon are anthorized to
N inform the leaders that if the Clompany’s (foverument is restored, not onfy witl there
) be & general amnesty granted, but in case the Compeny should clrim the payment fo
) :llllcl]:] stores, that the Canadian Government will stand Detween tho insnrgents an
Rl’m.” .

The Archbishop was furnishiod with a copy of the proclamation and left, having
ov utred tho conviction from conversations with Sir John A. Macdonald, that what-
th‘"’ might take place, ke was authorized to pnblish the proclamition or not, as he
hﬂusbt pmper, according to circwiastances, and that it wonld cover everything done

the day of'its publication. Sir John A.Lgacdonald, giving a different interpretation
: 1
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to the proclamation, admits that he did not tell the Arehbishop to issue the proclama-
tion if other crimes were committed in the intorval botween his departure and his
reaching the territory.

~ Archbishop Taché arrived in the iorritory on the 9th of March, 1870, five days
after the death of Scott. The excitemont was. great and “ ke was speedily convinced
“ that the situation was extremely perilous,” and that every possible precaution should
be taken to conciliate all interests at stake.

On the 11th of March, 1870, the Archbishop met Riel, Lepine, O'Donoghue and
others, and promised them an amnesty in the namo of the Governor General, in
accordance with his proclamation, and assured them it would apply to everything
done till thon, being satisfied that unless such promise was made tEey would resist the
Canadian party, and that the country would cortainly be ruined.
- On tho Bth of June following, Krchbishop Taché, seeing the umcasiness of the
people, owing to their ignorance as to the granting of a complete amnesty, the plans
suggested to resist the troops, and in order to avert the danger to which they in the
North-West werc exposed, gave his word of honor, in the name of the Canadian
Government, thet a complete and entire amnesty (if not already beatowed} would be
granted before the arrival of the troops. He immediately wrote to Mr. Howe, the
then Secretary of State, to inform him of what he had done. On the fourth of July
Mr. Howo acknowledgod the Jetter of Archbishop Taché, and reminded him that in
tho debate on the Manitoba Bill Ministers had declared that Canada had no power
to grant an amnesty. and that the exercise of tho prevogative of mercy rested solely
with Her Majosty; that Fathor Ritchot and Mr. Scott had been distinctly informed
that the Dominion Government had no power as 1 Government to grant an smnesty,
and, ¢ T would add,” says Mr. Howe, “ that the Geovernment is not in a position lo
«{nterfere with the free action of Her Majesty in the exercise of the royal clemency.

Haor Majesty’s Imporial Ministers can alone advise the Queen on such an im-
“ R:-tant matter, when called upon to do so. No doubt can be entertained that Her
« Majesty, advised by Her Ministers, will on a calm review of all the circumstances
“ discharge the duty of this high responsibility in o lemperate andd'udic-ial spirit.

«The foregoing explanations aro given to Your Lordship in order that it may be
“well understood that the responsibility of the sssuranco given by Your Lordship of
« 3 comploto amnesty, cannot in any way attach itself to the Canadian Government.

“The conversation to which Your Lordship allndes as having taken place
“ between Your Lordship and some Members of the Canadian Cabinet, when PYom'
« Lordship was in Ottawa about the middle of the month of February last, must
“ necessarily have taken place with reforence to the proclamation issued by His
« Bxoelloncy tho Governor Goneral, on the 6th Decombor last, by command of Her
« Majesty, in which Iis Excellency anncunced that in case of tgair immeodiate and
« penceahlo dispersion, he would order that no legal proceedings be taken against any
« parties implicated io these unfortunate breaches of the law at Red River.

“Though I have folt it my duty to boe thus oxplicit in dealing with the incipal
«“ gubject of your lettor, J trust I need not assure you that your zealous anf:aluabk -
¢ grertions to calm the public mind in the North-West are duly appreciated here, and I am
“ gonfident that when you regard the obstructions which have been interposed to the adop-
“ tion of a hberal and enlightened policy for Manitoba, you will not g’ disposed to relax
“ your exertions until that policy is formally established.”

On the 5th of July, Sir Goorge Cartier wrote to Bishop Taché a long letter
marked strictly private and eonfidential, in which he gives 8s a reason for pot
aaswering his Jetters, that he was afraid tho answer might bo intorcopted and that
ho has trusted to gcod Father Ritchot to teil him in person what ho did not like t0
put on paper, f

He spoaks of the delicate question of amnesty, that happily for the people ©
Red River, the question of amnesty rosts with Her Majesty, and not with the Cané’
dian Government. -He refers to to the potition of Father Ritchot to the Queen, and of
the interviews Father Ritchot had with Sir John Young. Then he addas, ¢ but it is,
“T repeat, fortunato that it ix 1Ter Majesty, aided by the advice of Her Ministers, who

' 20
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“ will have to decide this question. Her Majosty has already by proclamation of the
“ §th of December last, which she caused to bo issued by Sir John Young, s0 to
W speak promised an amnesty.”

After recommending that a hearty welcome be offered to Mr. Archibald, who was
going to the North-West as Lieutenant-Governor, and to the military oerdition he
adds, *“ The Queen will perhaps wait for the rosult before making known Her
“ clomency ;" and agnin, “if it should happen that opposition were offored on the
“ grrival of the troops and of the new Governor, those taking part ia it would inour
% tho risk of finding themselves excladed from the amnesty Her Majesty may have
“ in view ; and which sho will sooner or lator make known.”

This was written while Sir George Cartier acted as leader of the Government,
during tho illnoss of Sir John A. Macdonald, and for the evidont purpose of showin,
that the lettor of the 4th of July was to guiot tho foars of some ofP his cotleagues, an
for no othor purpose.

Archbishop Taché further states, that in a subsequent interview, in July, 1870,
Bir George nssured him that the amnesty would bo proclaimed, that nothing had
been changed, and that the proclamation was expected any day.

The Archbishop also states that on several occnsions he wrote to Sir George
Cartior and to Sir John A. Macdonald, strongly nsserting that an amuesty had been
promised, without it being denied by them. )

It will be observed that the lettor of the 4th of July containa no disallowance,
cithor on tho part of the Governor General or of his Cabinot, of the action of the
Archbishop ; no repndiation of the promises made; no request to inform the parties

‘10 whom they were made that thoy ncod not rockon on those promises; and no
revocation of his authority. On the contrary he is told that kis zealous and valuable
exertions to calm the public mind in the North-West are duly appreciated, and he is invited
not to relux those exertions until a liberal and enlightened pofcy is formally established.
In fact, whilo tho Government ondeavor to throw on their agent the responsibility
of the course of action he has takon, they neverthclesa approve of what he has done;
invito him to persist, and thoy continue him in his confidential and delicate miasion.
This approval is made more apparent by comparing Mr. Howe's letter, which wan
official, with that of Sir George Cartier's of the 5th of July, which wus strictly private
and confidential. The first one for the public, and tho othor for Monseigneur Taché
alono, No person can rise from n perusal of those two lotters without heing satisfied
that tho conduct of tho Archbishop was fully approved of by the Government, who
shrunk from & public expression oiE their approval.

That Archbishop Taché, acting under the instructions received at Oitawa, when
he was entrustod with the proclamation of the Governor General, of the 5th

cembor, for publication on his arrival in the territory, and under the letter
8ir John A. Macdonald handed to him, both of which documents contained a direct
Pronaise of smnesty, did promise an amnesty, is not contested. Bat it is contended
that the authority to promise an amnesty did not extend to ncts subsoquent to the
18th of Fobruary, 1870, the date of tho instructions, and could only cover offences
Bimilar to those mentioned in the proclamation, and could not apply to such a crime
88 the murder of Scott,

'The instructions to Archbishop Taché were to publish the proclamation, if he
thonght propor, when he roached the territory. The proclamation of amuesty con-
tﬂll}ed in Sir John A. Macdonald's letter was also to bo made when tho Archbishop
arrived at Rod River. It is hardly necessary to say, that a proclama‘ion takes effect
hot from tho day it is prepsred or dated, but from the day of its publication; and o
Promise from the day it i3 made, unless another dute be specified. Now, it has been
’i_BWn that no restriction was imposed upon Archbishop ’I:aché, who was to exercive

'8 own discretion 10 quiet public excitement. '
Ty 1t might perhaps be snid, that the Avchbishop finding on hia arrival at Red
River, that the condition of things was materially changed, should not have promised
:.“mesty, but roferred to tho Imporial and Canadian authorities for farther insteue-
lons.  This, however, dees nnt affect thze quostion, whether or not, he aeted within
1
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}heds%ope of his authority, but merely whether he used a wise disoretion in acting as
e did. :
Both by the proclamation and by Sir John A. Macdonald’s lotter, a distinct
promise of amnosty was made. The Archbishop was authorized to make that
promise known when ho arrived ot Rod River, Ho has done so; and whether it was
wiso or mot, is & question to bo decided by tho nocessity of the case. It is worthy of
remark, that lator on, as will bo soon horeafter, Licutenant-Governor Archibald, when
placed in tho same difficulty, took a similar course. That tho promisos so made by
the Archbishop, and which procared the immediate release of the prisoners and the
asceptanco of the terms of the Manitoba Act, prevented civil war, and caused the
recognition of the Canadian Governmout in tho territory, are binding on those who
gave the authority to make them, could not admit of & doubt, ovon if his course of
nction had not subseg 'ently boen approvel by the snbscjuent uction of the Govern-
ment, a3 shown by the letters of the 4th and btk July, 1570.
_ The noxt impnrtant portion of the evidence to be found in the report relates to
the promises mado to the North-West delegates.

Fathor Ritchot, Judge Black, and Mr. Alfred Scott weore appointed at o meeting
of delogatos from the North-West pooplo, and also by the Provisional Government,
deputation to discuss with the Canadian Government the terms of union, They
were the bearers of the conditions on which the peoplo of the North-West were
willing to join the Confederation. Theae conditions, pm]l:amd and adopted at the

meeting and by the Provisionat (fovernment. were cailed their * Bjll of Rights,” the
19th Article of which regunired a guarantee, ¢ that none should ‘bo held liable or
i 1‘e&pon§iblo with regurd to the mpvement, or of any action which led to these negoli-
“ations,”

From tho 23rd of April to tho 8th of May, 1870, tho nasgotiations wers carriod
on by the delogates, on the ono hand, and on the othor by Sir John A. Macdonald,
and by Sir George Cartier, specially appointed to represont the Dominion Govern-
mont. From tho 6th of May to September, 1870, Sir John A. Macdonald being ill,
was unnble to attend to business; and the nogotiations wero carried on and completed
by Sir George Caxtior along—Sir Georgo being the most influential momber, and
virtually the lepdor of the Government duving Sir John A. Macdonald's illness.

Father Ritehot contends that he and (e other two members of the delegation
were neknowledged and treated with as delegates trom the Provisional (iovernmenl,
which s deniod Dy Sir Johw A. Maedonald, who sy they were received ux delugatos
from the people of the North-West; but that it waz known that they wero alyg tho
delogates of the Provisional Government and hearers of the “ Bill of Rights” pl‘Bpalel
hy the latter, is not contosted, Nor is it vontested that scveral articles of the Bill of
Rights, including Article 19, wore discussed.

OF the three delogates, Father Ritchot alone gave hia ovidonce. Judge Black
wont to reside in Europe immediatoly aftor tho negotiations were closed, and Alfred
Seott is now doad, '

Father Ritchot repoatodly asserts that, although during the negotiations tho Can-
adian Ministers eaid that the granting of the amnesty, of which he and the other
delogates made a sive quid non of any arrangement, did not rost with Canada, they
would find means to arrango the mattor; that they were in a position to assure them
that an nmnesty woull be granted immediately aftor the pussing of tho Manitoba
Act, that they might trust to their word for it, that thero would be no difficulty
whatevor about the amnesty, all which is as strongly deniod by Sir John A, Mae-
donald. ‘

Howover, on the 18th May, 1870, the necgotiations being ovor, Fathor Ritchot
writes to Sir Georgo B. Cartier, and aflor drawing his attontion to threo different
subjects, one of which s thus aliuded to: *'The questions raised by tho 19th clansc of
i ogr instractions are of the highost. importance, I trast, Sir, and tho past is my war
« vant for the futuro, that you will ho able to sccure us, bofore nur departuro, all the
¢ guarantees promised by Sir John and you in relation fo these highly important queations.

Tho 19th srticle or clnuse referred t>. it will be remembered, had mainly refer-
22
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ence 1o the amuesty.  On the next day, 19th of May, Sir George, before answoring
this letter, took Father Ritehot and Mr. Alfred 8cott, two of the delogates, to Sir John
Young, the then Governor General, and a long conference took place on the subject
of amnesty., On the 23nl May Sir George Cartier, answoring the lotter of Falher
Ritehot of the 18th, ulludex to' the question of ammesty. On the 23rd May, Sir
treorge Cartier, answering the letter of Father Ritchot of the 18th, alludes to tho
quostion of amnosty and to the interview with the Governor Greneral, ns follows:

«T dosire to call your attention to tho interview you had with 1lis Excellency
“the Governor Genoral tho 19th instant, at which I was present, and at which His
“ Fxcolloncy was ploasud to state the liberal policy which the Governmont proposed
¢ty follow in relation to the persons for whom you interest yourself, is correct, aud
“ which ought to be adopted.” '

This letter, it will be observed, not only dues not deny the cmphatic assortion of
Futher Ritchot, that Sir john A. Maedonald aud Sir George 15 Carticr liad promised
him gusrantees in roterence to the amneaty, hut impliedly adwits that such promises
waro made, and that the Governor (feneral approved of their action.

The postscript anthorizing Futher Ritchot to uso the Jetter in any oxplanation he
way have o give, was, nodoult, intended to onable Father Ritchot to satisty the peoplo
of the North-West, that their demands, including the amnesty, had been acquissced
in; otherwise the postscript could have no meaning,

Immediatedly aftor this, Sir tieorge E. Cartier requested Fathor Ritchot, through
Mr. J. C, Taché Deputy Minister of Agriculture, to sign a petition to tho Queon,
propared at tho instance of Sir George himself, anﬁ praying for an immediate
amnesty.

Fathor Ritchot further says that in o subsequent interview Sir George Cartier
told him that he had obtained ull he wished for, that the amnesty would be proclaimed
before the arrival of the Licutenant-Governor in the Territory, and that Sir George
requested him “ to tell Riel and his people that they had nothing to fear.”

From the moment Father Ritehot left Ottawa on the first day of June, he has
not ceased to nskume and assert, in his lettors to Sir George Cartier, in bis interviews
with Riel and others, and with Archbishop Taché, in a second petition to the Queen,
which ho aod Alfred Seott signed in May, 1872, as well as in the afidavits (p. 83),
which he gavo on the 19th November. 1873, that the amnosty had been promised and
would he granted.

The statements of Father Ritchot are corroborated by the letters of Sir Goorgoe
Ua_rtier, by bhis memorandum of the 8th of June, 1870 (p.P. 171 to 178), by the
f‘hdance of the Hon, Joseph Royal, who says Siv George Cartier told him that ¢ tho
“ amnesty was settled upon "—to tell Ricl of it (p.p. 129 and 130); by that of the Hon.
3{- A, Girurd, to whom 1Sir Goorge said © be sure that the amnesty will cume Defore

long,—tell your people to rcmain quiet and koep order” (p. 179); by that of
ajor Futvoye, who heard Sir George say to Father Rilchot, ¢ I guarantee that you .
will have everything yon have asked,” and that he (8ir George) frequently told
h‘m. (Mr. Futvoye) that he had promised *the delegates that a genoral amnesty
should be granted fir all past offences;” also by that of Bonjamin Sulte, who says
that in bis presence Sir George Cartier “ repeatedly assurcd Father Ritchot that the
_ PGOILIe would not be troubled in reference to what had taken place.” Major Futvoye
Was the Deputy and Mr. Sulte the Private Sccretary of Sir George Cartier.
0 Apart from this direct evidonce, the enquiry mnade by the Committec has dis-
;I?I:Be(i :1 sories of facts of the highest intercst, in their bearing on tho question of
P Ml A_rohibald was appointed Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba, and was in the
t}:‘Ovmce, in the beginning of September, 1870, some cight days after the mirival of
. © troops. Although he declares that he received no instruetions ns regards the
b;lnest » he never seoms to have entertained any doubt that it was either promised
the I minion Governmont, or implied in the Treaty.
d This is shown by Mr. Royal's evidence, and by a letter which Mr. Archibald ad-
Yessed to Mr, Smith, on the 20th of Decesrgber, 1873, in which he says, « There is no
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#doubt that a very short time would have beon needed to bring about a better state
“of things, and thon he and his friends (Riol and his friends) could have ciaimed an
‘ amnesty, which, whether it was yromised or not, was implied in tho Treaty; but
% which, whether promised or not, no Government could venturo to give till the pas-
“# gions of the moment had cleared away a little, and left them free to act in the frue
“ interest of the Dominion.”

Theso views are those that he took from the outset; for he says that on his arri-
val at Red River, Septembor, 1870, he told the people and tho Avchbishop, that ho
had no instructions; and that he also stated to the Archbishop, that his oien impres-
sion was, that under all the circumstances of the case, the logical conclusion secemed to be,
that there must be an amaesly.

In QOctober, 1871, the Provinue was menaced with a formidable Fenian invasion,
Governor Archibald thought the situation so grave, that to repel thia invasion
roquired the united action of the whole population. Heo applied to Father Ritchot
to securo the assistance of tho French halibreeds. A correspondence took place, in
which Father Ritcliot represented that Riel's infiuence was necessary to direct his
compatriots, but that he was in such a é)o»ition, that he could not act openly, unless
he reccived tho assurance that he would be sheltered from any legal proceedings, at
least for the present.

0 this request, (isvernor Archibald repliod-—

“You speak of the ditticultics which might irapede any action of Mr. Riel, in
“ coming torward to use his influence with his fellow-citizens, to rally to the support
“of the Crown, in the prosent emergency.”

“ Should Mv. Riel como forward, as suggested, he nood be under no apprehension
* that his liborty will be interfered with in any way. To use your own languago,
pour lu circonstance acteulle.”

Riol eame forward as requested, and organized two or three hundred half-breeds.
He, together with Lepine and Parontean, wrote to the Governor that they had
organizoed several companies, and others woro being organized, and that so long as their
pervices wore required, he might roly upon them.

On the 8th of October, the Governor crossed the river to meet them. He shook
hands with Riel, Lepino and othcrs, and returned them his thanks, through his
soecretary, Mr. Buchanan, for their loyalty and prompt action, by a letter of the Bth
October, addressed to Riel, Lepine and Parontean. In his evidenco, Governor Archi-
bald.explains, as follows, tho reasous which justifics his course of action:

“ [ beliove (he says), that tho action of t{m haif-broeds, at the time of the Fenian
t raid, was attributable to the negotiations with their leaders which I have described ;
“ and if the half-breeds had taken a differont course, I do not believe the Province
+ would now be in our possession. I think T communioated those circumstances to the
“ Government at Ottnwa.”......

#But I did not receive any communication from that Government as to the
# mode of action wdopted or to be adopted.”

In those difficult cireumstances ho was left without other instructions than thoee
he had received at Oltawa from Sir George Cartior, who said to him:—¢ You must
« axercise your hest judgment, end do what you can to preserve the public peace; we
“ have implicit faith in your discretion and good sense.”

Iz a confidential letter of the 8th October, 1871, Governor Archibald reported
without delay to Sir John A. Macdonald the promise he had made—+ that pour la cir-
“ constance actevile the leaders of 1869 and 1879 would not be arrested.”

This letter was acknowledged on the 18th QOctober by Sir John A. Macdonald,
who did not oxpress a word of disapprobation at the course pummuod.or the promises
made to the leaders. _

Govornor Archibuld, later on, after he had ample time, for reflection, says:—

“ On looking back, I see nothing in tho course I took that gives mo any doubt
“ a8 to its correctness. [ would take it again under the like circumstances. If the
“ Dominion have at this moment a Province to defend, and not oue to conguoyr, they

~‘““owe iv to the policy of forbearance.” :
L
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These sevoral acts of the Licutenant-Governor, in soliciting the aid of Riel and
others at a time of great danger for tho safoty of the country; his associating with
thom, and thanking them for their services, to say nothing o: the direct promise to
freo thera from the present from arrest, constitute, under the circumstancoes, and
according to every rule ot"public and intornational law, an absolute and unconditional
Ei‘omise of amnesty for all the offences of which Ricl and his companions might then

ave been chargod with. The words pour la circonstance actuelle, used by the Gover-
nor, can in no wiso limit the exient of this morcy, for pardon on the one day cannot
mean trial on the next day for tho same offence.

The Dominion Government, under whose authority the Licutenant Governor was
acting, could only have boen relieved from the consaquences of the obligiations implied
in his dealing with the leaders of 1869 and 1870, by an immediate disailowance of his
acts and repeal of his nuthority. Far from this boing dome, his coursc was approved
by a promotion to the important office of Lieutonant-Governor of Nova Scotia, which
position he now hLolds. _

Subsoquent cvents show to what oxtont the Dominion Governmont felt the
responsibility of the obligations which cither of their own promises or the acts of the

onts imposed npon them, for within a month of the occurrences just alluded to, and
when all approhensions of danger from a Fenian invasion were over, Sir George E.
Cartier and Sir John A. Macdonald are found pressing Archbishop Taché to use his
influonce in getting Ricl to leave the country for awhile. * If you can succeed in keep-
“ing him out of the way, I will malke his case mine, and I will carry the l1])oint.-," RAYS
Sir John A. Macdonald. He agrees to pay money to keep him out of the country,
and sends o draft of $1000 to Archbishop Taché, with instructions to pay the money
periodically, and spread it over u year to prevent waste, and tho embarrassment
cauged: by his prosence in the country from recurring, )

On his way home, Archbishop Taché was informed by a lettor from Sir Goeorge,
that it would bo advisable that Lepine should also leave the country, and the money
furnished by Sir John be divided boiween him and Riel. _ !

After ronching Red River the Archbishop found that the sum furnished was in-
suficiont. He applied to Licutenant-Governor Archibald, who called on Mr. 8mith,
and the latter, at tho request of the Lieutenant-Governor, advanced, out of the funds
of the Hudson Bay Company, asum of £600 0s, 0d. sterling, to be repaid by the

minion Governmoent. Part of this sum, and of the $1000 furnished by 8ir John,

was handed to Iteil and Lepine, who left the country accompanied by one or two men

gf the Dominion Police, sent by Plainval, the Chic{ of Police, to protect them from
anger.

] gdéh'c-,hbiaishop Taché says the reason assigned both by Sir John A. Macdonald and
Bir George E. Cartier for their request to send Riel out of the country, was to pre-
vent the exciternent which his presence in Manitoba would make during the elections,

Sir John A, Macdonald says his reason for sending Riel away, was the foar of a
Tenowed Fenian invasion, and the information the Government had that both Riel and

pine, although professing to act againstthe Fenian movement, were really in con-
tert with ita bodies. If the Government had such information, the proper place the
EOlmo should have taken Riel and Lepine to was tife common gaol, where they might
ave atoned for past offences and prevented from doing further mischief, instead of
A2companying them to the trontior, where they would meet their confederates and
Mature with impunity their treasonable projects. Governor Archibald cmphatically
enios that there was any danger of a second Fenjan invasion,and states that he satis-
ed himsolt of the loyalty of Rie!, about which he had doubts, His reason for desiring
oo away was the fear that if an attempt was made to arrest them, the whites, who

%oked upon them as patriots and leaders, might rise to rescuo them, and thereby en-
ger the peace of the country, Mr, Smith seems also to have shared that opinion.

Ba that as it may, the fact remains that the First Minister of the Dominion has
Used Civil Service money for the purpose of secroting from justice and preventing the
b @l of one who was accused ot ireason and murder. If this was not done in part
4 ﬁhlnlm of an engagement on behalf o;‘ bthe Governmgnt to pardon the offence of
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which Riel wus acoused, then it was a deliberato conspiracy to bar the course of public
justice ; it was simply an act of compounding, and, along with this aggravated circum-
stance, that it was not the felon who paid the accuser o secure impunity, but the
accuser, ibo public prosceutor, who firnished, out of the public cheat, the funds re-
quired for that purpose. This would be such a monstrous proceeding, that it cannot
be supposed to havo been entertained for an instance by one who, in addition to being
First Minister, held the office of Minister of Justice. The transaction just alluded to
furnishes another and perhaps stronger ovidence than all the others which have been
adduced, that the Government folt bound to secure the ammnesty to Riel and others,
and that they sought, by these means, to fulfil in spirit these engagements, which
later, at a more convenient time, thoy expected to be able to carry to their full extent,

Tt will perhaps be contended that the promise of amnesty, made by the Canadian
authorities, are of no value, since they had no right to grant it. The answer to thai
is, that the Dominion Government, or their represcntatives, did not promise to
grant an amuesty, but to secure it. This promise implies, that they would use every
means in their power to obtain it. After representing the whole case to the Imperial
Government, and showing that these promises wore mado in pursuance of instructions
received from the Colonial Secretary, ta use évery meaus to restore order and peaco
in ihe North-West Territory; and that those promises were considered by the confi-
dential agents who made them, as the only mode of fulfilling their mission; and that
the course they have thought necessary to adopt under a scuse of the gravest respon-
sibility, has saved that immense territory from the horrors of o civil and Indian war,
and has preserved it to the BritishCrown; itis not to be supposed that whea these
representations shall have been made, coupled with an carnest appeal for amnesty,
which is now desired by the bull of those most interested in the peace, welfare and
prosperity of that important part of the Dominion, that promises made under such
circumstances, and with such results, will bo discarded ; but whether they are or not,
the Canadian Government will then, and not till then,” be able to ¢luim to have
Qischarged its obligations towards those who made such promises on its behalf, as well
as t0 those v whom they were made.

26
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ENCLOSURE B.
NORTH-WEST QUESTION,

In o:der to consider in its true light the question of amnesty to Riel and th
other loaders implieated in the North-West troubles during the years 1869 and
1870, as it now stands, we have not to examine whether Riel and his confederates
comunitted acts which call for the condemnation of every loyal subject, but whether,
scoording to the law of nations, those parties are eutitled to a general amnesty for
all tho deeds by them perpetrated during those troubles, as insurgents and rebels to the
duthority of the 5mn. ]

To that end, many things and facts have to be taken into consideration :--

During tho rebellion, at the time when the insurgents were under arms and in

ossession of Fort Garry, and contralled and wero ruling the country, Archbishop
Taché, who was engaged in Rome at the (Ecumenical Council, was called, and in.
duced to proceed to the North-West as onvoy and plenipotentiary of Her Majesty’s
Government, and there to do all in his power to bring the insurgents to submission.
For that purpose, he was vested with the powers and authority contained in the
lettor of the then Governor General of Canada, Sir John Young, dated the 16th
February, 1870, of which foliows an sxfract :—

«« You are fully in possession of the viows of my Government, and the Imperial
“ Government, as I informed you, is eurnost in the dosire to_see the North-West
“Territory united to tho Dominion on equitable conditions. Ineed not atterapt to
“ fyrnish you with any instructions for your guidance, beyond those contained in the
“ talographic messnge sont me by Lord Granville, on the part of the British Cabinet,
“in the Proclamation” gdated 6th Docember, 1869) “ which I drew upin sccordance
“with that message, &c.”

In the above mentioned Proclamation, afier other recitals, Sir John Young,
addressing tho people of the North-West Territory, says :— And I do lastly inform
“ you in the case of your immediate and poaceable obedience and dispersion, I shall
% grder that no legal proceedings be taken against any parties implicated in these unfortunate
*“breaches of the law.”

His Lordship was furthermore given a lettor from S8ir Jobn A. Macdonald,
Prime Ministor and Minister of Justice, dated the 16th Fobruary, 1870, of which the
following is an extract :— :

“Should the question arise as to the consumption of any stores of goods belong-
“ing to the Hudson Bay Company by the insurgents. youn arc anthorized to inform
“ the lenders that, if the Company’s Government is restorod, not only will there be o
“ general amnesty granted, but in case the Company should claim the payment for
“ Elllfl;l_stores, that the Canadian Government will stand between the Insurgents and
< a am.!!

. Empowored by these credontials, and by the verbal instructions given him both
by the Governor General and by Sir Johu A. Maedonald and Sir Geo. E. Cartier, in
the name of tho Canadian Government, the Archbishop left for the North-West,
Whero he arrived in the first days of March, n few days after the death of Scott.
0 immediately commaunicated to' the leadors of the insurgents his crodentials,
Ramely, Sir John Young's letter and proclamation, and Sir John's lotter dated the
6th Februamry. Thoy were then in possossion of the whole territory, and had
Organized what they calied a Provisional Government and Legislature, throngh a
Pepular election in tho various French and English purishes in the torritory.

After having remonstrated with them, His Lordship, in the name of the Gover-
Bor General of Canada, made them soveral promises if they would lay down arms
49d sabhmit to the Canadisn authority, and more particularly promised a general
;"mnosty to all parties implicated in the insurrection, for what they had dono a8

- 1dsurgents up to that time, wncluding the shooting of Scott.
P lying on a promise thus made by a man of such & standing as Archbisho,
ché, on the authority of the crodentials‘}m exhibited to them, and on the ver
2
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instructions he told them he had received on leaving Ottawa, the insurgents doter-
mined to submit to Canadian anthority, declaring at the same time they had never
intended 1o break their allegiance to the C'rown, but that they would not be forced
into the Canadian Confoderation withont being consulted and without being granted
the same rights and privileges as were snjoyed by other portions of the I%ominion.
His Lordship answerod that tho Government of Canada were ready to consider their
propositions, and that thoy had only to send dolegates to Ottawa to agree upon tho
terms of their entering the Union; and he stated to them that if they did so they
would be amnestied from the first to the last, and he promised so in the name of Her Majesty,

The insurgents yielded to his entreatios, and sent delegatos to Ottawa with
written instructions, wherein tho granting of a goneral amnesty, as promised by
Archbishnp Tachd, envoy and representstive of tho Government ofy Can aga, was mado
the sine qud non,

The dolegates were received as tho delegates of the people of the North-West,
and had several interviews with Sir John A.%Iacdonsld and Sir Geo. E. Cartier, who
had boen specially anthorized by the Government to confer with them on the subject
of their mission, They communicated to thoso Minis'ers tho instructions given to
them by those who had sent them, After several intorviews, an agreement was
made, and resolutions adopted which were embodied in the Manitoba Act.

Delegates Ritchot and Scott state in their evidence that, as a general amnest
was the sine gud non of the understanding, it was prowised both by Bir Johun and Sir

George.

ii‘tor tho Manitoba Act was passed, the delogates roturned home and stated to
the leades that o general amnesty had been agreod to as promised by Archbishop
Taché, and wonld bo granted.

Beforo leaving, Father Ritchot, one of the delog:tes, fearing that the leaders of
the insurgonts would yet entertain doubts as to the cxecution of the promiso of
amnesty, wrote 1o Sir George E. Cartior a lettor in which he said :—*The questions
“ paiged by the 19th clause of onr instructions” (that clause was tho one relating to
the granting of tho amnesty) “are of the highest importance; I trust, sir, and the
“ past is my warrant for the future, that you will be able to secure us, beforo our
¢ doparture, all the guarantees promised by Sir John and you in relation to those
“ highly important questions.”

On receiving that letter, Sir George E. Cartier went to Mesars. Ritchot and
Scott, two of the dolagates, and took them to Iiis Excollency the Governor General,
where the question was discussed, and the noxt day he sent the following answer to
Mr. Ritohot's letter: —< I dasire to call your attention to the interview you had with
« His Excellency the Govornor General, at which I was present, and in which His
« Excelioncy was pleased 10 stato that tho liberal policy which the Government pro-
« posed to follow in relation to the persons for whom you interest yourself is correct, and
it 13 that which ought to be adopted.”

At an intorview with Sir George, beforo thoir departure, the delegates Ritchot
and Scott (Mr, Black had left for Scotland), asked him who was to govern the
gountry until the arrival of the Canadian authorities. He told them that Riel should

oit. : :

Whon theso two dolegates roachod Fort (larry, they reported to Riel and his
friends, the loadors of the insurgonts, what had been done; they told them that tho
condition of & general amnesty hnd been agreed to, as promised by Archbishop
Taché, and that it would be proclaimed under Her Majesty's own signataro, within
the strict delays neccssary to got it from England, They added that up to the
arrival of the Canadian auathorities, Ricl and his Provisional Government should
“ keop power and maintain onder.”  The insurgents, confident in thoso declarations,
kopt possession of Fort Garry .p to the arrival of tho troops sent by tho Canadiant
Government, and then immediatoly dispersed and laid down arms as agreed to,

It is maintained by ceftain people that, notwithstanding all the above and other
evidenco to bo found in the Blue Book, there is no proof that an amnesty has beon
promise ] to all parties having taken part in the North-Wost insurrectiou, for all the

' 28
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doeds porpetrated by thom as insurgents. Let us examine by comparing the evi-
dencs, tho value of such an opinion.

On the one hand, we have the following authorities : '

19, Archbishop Taché states ho said to Sir John A. Mnedonald, before leaving for
the North-West: # This is all very well, but there have hoen ncts committod which
“gre blameworthy, and therc may be some othor hefore my arrival thero: “may
“] promise them an amnpesty?” Ilc answered me: * Yes, you may promise
4 it to thom.” It was then that Sir John A, Macdonald wrote me the letter dated
“16th Feb’y, 1870.” S
29 Father Ritchot says that, when he arrived at Ottawa as 6 delegate, “ The
« Ministers said in reply to our question, that they wore in n position to assure us
“ %uﬁt an amnosty would be granted immediately after the passing of the Manitoba
£ i -!?

39. Alfred A. Scott says, in his petition to Her Majesty: -

¢ That on the day and at the hour appointed, tho negotiations were opened and
“ that the delegates of the North-West declored to the Honorable Membors of the

.

« Cabinot of Ottawa, that in conformity with their instructions, they could not como
“to any ngreement unless a goneral amnesty should be granted for the illegal acts
“ which might have boen committed by any of the partics concerned in the troubles
“ that had occasioned the actual delegation.” :

“ That the Honorable Sir John A. Macdonald and Sir Georgo E. Cartier declared
“to the delegates that they wore in a position to assuro them that such was the
“ intention of Your Majesty, that they could consequently prucegd with the negotia-
“ tions, being satisfied that the Royal Prerogative of morcy would bo exercised by
* the %mnt of a general amnesty.”

4°. Hon. Josoph Royal says: -

« In the interview reforred to, I said to 8ir Goorge, I intended to go to Manitoba
“if the amnesty is to be proclaimed.

« He advised me very strongly to go, for soveral roasons. Ho enquired if T had
“goon Riel. Ho told me to tell Riel, and write to him, L’umnestie est unc affaire
%< decidé, c'est une affaire faite’ e stated that it was a settled affuir; ¢that the
“ ¢ thing was done,’”

« He expressly asked me to inform Riol of this, and to write to him if I could
“ not see him,”

5°. Hon. M. A. Girard says: _

 Ag one of the Ministers of the Province, and fecling that it wonld be impos-
“gible to do much good in the Provinco withoat any amnosty, I wrote to Sir Guo-ge
“Cartier, whom I regarded as ono of my partioular friends, on two or three differ-
“ ent oceasions, drawing his nttontion to that amnosty, and the promise that, I under-
“ stood trom the whole of tho poople, had been mado of an amnesty. In theso letters
“T deseribed the condition of the country, and urged strongly upon Sir Georgo the
“ necesity for an amnesty.

“ T received answers to several of theso letters—I think 1o all of them. His
* angwer was to request me to be sure that the amncaty would come. ¢ Soyez certain
““‘ gzz Pamnestie viendra avant long temps” Toll your people to remain quiot and koep

order, '
«. 1 wrote to Sir Georgo a3 well in m‘f capneity of a Ministor 23 the solo repre-
« sentation of the Fronch oloment; and also as friend. 1 have not those nnswors
. from Sir Goorge herc; they are at Winnipeg. In these letters to mo he remarked
. Bluo when recommonding quiet, that the encmies of the people would bo gratified
o if they [;ul: themselves in tho wrong by ncting otherwise, and so deprive them.
. 30lves of the bonefit of their position. Ho desired me to tell thom to alhere to

their duty and that the amneaty would inevitably come.”

6°. Major Futvoye says: _ _

« .. L am Deputy of the Minister of Militia and Defence. I have fllledd that offive
since Confederation. '

“I was present at a moeting betweeggSierorgo Cartior and Fathor Ritchot on
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% 19th May, 1870, or thercabouts, when Sir (oorgo told Father Ritchot this: Je
Y ¢ guaraniis quevous aurcx tont ce que vous ur-r demande.” 1 did not hear the convaérsa-
“ gation which hal precoded this expression, nor was anyihing said afterwards dur-
“ ing tho same intorview further. Ft wag at the close of a lang intorview between
“ them when I was callod in and henrd these words,

¢ Father Ritchot eame from Sir George's dircet into my room, which was al-
“ most adjoining, and told mo that Sir George had guaranteed that an amreosty for
“ all tho past shouid be granted as soon as it could possibly be obtained, :

‘“ After Fathor Ritchot had left me I went into Sir George's room, when be told
“ mo that he had promisod all that tho delegates requestod, and he hoped thatevery-
“ thing was finally settled.

“ Ho askod mo if Fathor Ritchot was satisfod, and I told him that he assured
“ mo ghat the promisos made by Sir George were quito satisfactory. This interview
“ gva.s early in the day, and, I presume, bofore any audionco of the Governor on that
“ dgv.”

he:o six gentiomen all ngree in their evidenco that tho amnesty was promised
both by Sir Joﬁn A.Macdonald and Sir Goo. K. Cartier, in tho nameof the Canadian
Governmeont. .

On the othor hand, wo havo the denial of the two Iatter genilemen.

In order to propefly approciste this conflicting ovidence as to tho promiso
made t3__Archbishop Taché, “before he left ns delogate on bobulf of Canada, and to
Mesers. Ritchot and Scott, as delogates from people of tho North-Wost, it must be
borne in mind that at the time when the insurgents took arms and got possession of
Fort Garry, there {vas great excitement. The Fenians had twice invaded our for-
ritory, and thereby caused a large amount of exponditure both in time and money.
There was fear in %nglaud and here that we mingt. be called to suffor o considernble
loss in lives and in money, und porhaps be draggod into a war, not only with tho
Half-breeds, who wore but few in number, but with the Indian tribos of the prairies,
to which the insurgents wero related by blood and language,—aund with the Fenian
ovganization, which was making overy effort eto raise trouble on this side of the

"~ American line. 1t was belioved %y everybody that if we onco got inlo war with the
people of tho prairies, no ono could forotell tho end of it, on account of the immonse
extent of the North-Wost territories, and that we would bo exposed to the same
endless sacrifices which the United States had to suffer so many yoars, on accoant of
the Indians of their Western Territory.

“The Imperial Govornment itself, to a cortain oxtent, shared this approhoension,
since Sir Clinton Murdock was instructed to watch the proceedings on its behalf,
and Lord Granville deomed it necessary to send the tele graphic dospateh reforred
to by the Governor-General, &c., &ec., &c.

Such being the goneral improession, and the Canadian Government boing advieed
by the Imperial Authoritios to make evory offort towards the settlement of the diffi-
culty, is 1t not most probable and likely thut Archbishop Taché, whon sent to the
North-West, received the authority he was asking, and which every one concerned
must hove considered as essential for the success of his mission, namely, the power
to promiso the granting of an amnesty ? That conclusion must also bo merived at if
we considor the offoct and extent of the general authority in the carte blanche given
to- him by the Governor-Goneral's letter, and by that of Sir John A, Macdonald,
dated the 16th February, 1870.

We havo also the several letters of Sir Geo. I Cartior, and his declarations to
Measrs, Girard, Royal, Ritchot and Futvoye, all of which go to cstablish that tho
promi:e of amnesty had been mauto, and “which fully corroborate the ovidence of
Archbishop Taché. I it to be supposed thut if the promise of an amnesty, as stated
by Archbishop Taché, had not becu made by Sir JuRn A. Macdonald, that ho would
have submitted to tho allegations contained in severs! of his Lordship's letters ?
that he would have given monoy for Riel and Lepine ¢ that he would have npproved
Lioutenant-Governor Archibald and his ministor, Mr. Girard, when thoy made tho
same promise 7 And when Mr. Archibald accepted Riel's services to repel ihe
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Fenians, can we supposo that Sir John would have rewarded him by giving him a
more important position than the one he thon hold, if Mr, Archib llg had dore to
without Sir John’s knowledge and consent 7 Decidedly no! To sum up, from the
roarons, then existing, which would have jnduced any Government to do all in their
power to put down that insurrection, and from Sir John's conduet from beginning
to ond, it is ovident that, as alloged by Archbishop Taché and Messrs. Ritchot an
Ecot.t, the promise was duly made both before and at the time tho delogates came
oro, . :

But now let us supposo for one moment that, whon Archbisbop Taché went {o
the North-West as tho reprosontative of Canada, ho was not authorized by the Go-
vle]:rnme{xt of the day to make the promise he has made, would the gquestion be
changed ? S

The following facts are undeniable: :

Archbishop Taché, as our plenipotentiary, and as representing the Governor
and the Government of Canada, made to the insurgents the promise of a full and
general umnesty, in the very terms montioned in his evidence.

That promise was officially notified to the Canadinn Government by his letters,
boaring datoe tho 11th March, 7th May, and 9th June, 1870.

o liad nover beon disavowed or publicly disapproved, but on the contrary, bo
was thanked for having done what he had dono. .

For and in considoration of that promise of amnesty, the insurgents sent dele-
gatos to Ottawa, to whom tho promise was renewed, at least by Sir Geo. E. Cartier
who, together with Sir John A. Macdonald, had been empowered by the Cabinet t2
nogotiate with those delogates, and who, in the absence and during the illness of Sir
John, acted alone, and, as his Excelloncy Lord Dufforin says, ns locum tenens of the
Prime Minister. -

Tho renewal of such promise by Sir Geo. E. Cartier was within the knowledge
of 8ir John A. Macdonald, for he says in his evidence : ¢ In tho conversations be-
“ tween Sir Guorgo and Father Ritchot, they were moving on different planes ; Sir
“ George, reforring o the amnesty, exclusive of the porsons charged with tho death
“ of Seott, and Father Ritchot always including them.” -

The lenders of the insargents have excouted thoir share of the agreement, and -
that which was the consoquence of the Xromisa of smnesty, and the Government
have taken advantage of that promiso and of its results, :

According to the principles of International law, which applies as well to
nsurgents as to & foreign nation or power, the Government of Her Majesty is bound
t fultil the promise made to Archbishop Taché and grant a general ammnesty, be-
- Sauge it has taken advantage of the treaty made with Archbishop Taché, with or
Without proper authority. All the authors on International law, both French and

glish, concur in thir,
« . Let us first rofor to Vattel (Book IT,, Chap. XIV,, 8, 208): “if a public person,
 2n ambassador, or & general of an army, excoeding the bounds of hia commission,
. Soncluded a treaty or u convontion without orders from the sovereign, or witho®t
o 20ing authorized to do it by virtuo of his office, tho treaty is null, as being made
., Fithout sufficient powers: it cannot become valid without the express or tacit rati-
« fication of tho sovereign. Tho exdprels ratification is a written deod by which the
‘4 @Vﬁrgiﬁn approves the treaty and engages to observe it. The tacit ratification is
. 'opliod by cortnin steps whick the sosereign is justly presumed to take only in pursuance
o the treaty, and which he could not bo supposed to take without considering it a8

Concluded and agreed upon.” :
«, AAnd again, same book and chapter, s. 212: « Wo havo shown that s State cannot
. e boun by an agreement made without her orders, and without her having
o Sranted any power for that purpose. But is she absolntely free from all obliga-
1on? That is the point whiclhi now remains for us to examine. If matters ns gnet
o onttinue in their original situation, the State or the sovercign may simply dis
« 2Yow the treaty, which is, of course, done away by such disavowal and becomen 88
rfeot a nullity as if it had nevor exi{oted. But the sovereign ought to m ake
8
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“ known his intentions as 90on as the {reaty comes fo his knowledge; not, indeed, that his
“ silence alono can give validity to a convention which tho contracting pactics have
“ agreod to congider as valid without his approbationa ; but it would be a breach of good

A aralieg }’P "
“ faith in him fo suffer o sufficient time to clapac for the othor party to execute, onr his
“gide, an agroement which he himsoif is determinod not to ratity, '

And furthor, Book IIL, Chap. XVIIL., 8. 291: - In many cases the safest, and
“at the same timo, most just mothod of appeasing sedition, is to give the peoplo
v gatisfaction. And if therc existed noroasons to justify the insurrection (a circum-
“gstance, which, perbaps, nover happens), even in such a case, it becomes noces-
“ sary, as wo havo above observoed, to grant an amnesty whoro the offenders are nu-
“ merous, Whon the amnesty is once published or accopted, all the past must bo
* buried in oblivion; nor must any one be called to account for what has been done
“ during the disturbances: and, in genoral, the sovercign, whose word ought ever
“t0 be sacred, is bound to the faithful observance of every promiso ho has made,
* gven to rebels—I mean to such of his subjects as have revolted without reason or
“ neeessity. If his promises aro not inviolable the rebels will have no security in
“ treating with him: when they have once drawn the sword they must throw away
“the scaﬁbard, a8 ono of the ancients expresses it; and the prince, destitute of tho
“ more gentle and salutary moanns of appeasing the revolt, will have no other re-
“ maining expedient than that of utterly exterminating the insurgents. These will
“become formidable through despair; compassion will bestow succours on them,
“ their purtir will increase, and tho State will be in danger. What would havo be-
“como of France if the leaguors had thought it ansafo to rely on the promisos of
“ Henry the Groat? 7Thesame reasons which should render the faith of promises inviolable
“ and sacred between individual and individual, between sovereign and sovereign, between
““ enemy and enemy, subsist in all their force between the sovereign and his insurgent or rebel-
 Kous subjects.” :

Also Book V., ch. VI, Act 14:

“Upon a scrupulous fidelity in the obscrvation of treaties, not merely in their
“letter, but in their spirit, obviously depends, under God, the poace of the world.
“ Pact a sunct servanda is tho prevading maxim of International, as it was of Roman
- % jurisprudence.”

And again, loc. ¢it., Art. BO:

“The consent may be signified in varions ways. Some jurists have asserted
“that the declaration of consent must be epecified in writing; but, though
“ this be the usual and most convenient mode, it cannot be said to be indiapensable
“to the-validity of the Treaty.”

Wheaton (Elements of International Law, Part TIL., 8, 253) says:

“ No particular form of words is essential to the conclusion and validity of &
“binding compact hetween nations. The mutual consent of the contracting parties
“may be given expressly or tacitly, and in the first case, either verbally or in writ-
“ing, It may bo expressod by an instrument signed by the plenipotentiaries of
sthoth parties, or by @ declaration, and counter-declaration, or in the form of Jetters

#or notes exchanged botween them. But modorn usage required that verbal agree-
# ments should be as soon aa possible, reduced to writing in order to avoid disputes ;
#and al] mere verbal communications, provexding the final signature of a writton con-
“ yention, aro considered as merged in the instrumony itself, The consent of the
“ parties may be given tacitly, in the caso of an agreement made under un tmperfect
‘ qutharity, by acting under it as if duly concluded.”

Also loc. cit, 8, 256 : “Such acts or engagemonts, when made without aunthority,
“gr exceeding the limits of the authority under which they purport to be made, are
“.culled.%:omm. Mhese conventions must be confirmod by express or tacit ratifica-
“tion. The former is given in positive terms, and with tﬁe usunl forms; the {atter
“is implied from the fact of acling undor the agroesment as if bound by its stipula-
« tions. Mere silence is not sufficient to iufer a ratification by either party, in ander
“to prevent the Istter from carrying its own part of the agreement into effect. 1
«however, it has been totally or partially executed by either party, acting in good
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“{aith upon the supposition that the agent was duly authorized, the party thus act-
“ing is entitled to bo indemnitied or replaced in his former sittakion,”
Also, Part IV, s 899: #Grotius hus devoted . wholo clupter of liis
‘ great work o Erove, by the consenting testimony of all ages and nations, thit
“ good faith ought to be observed towards an enemy. Aud cven Byukershoek, who
“ holds that every other sort of fraud may be practised towurds him, prohibits per-
¢ fidly, upon the ground that his chgracter of enemy ceases by the compact with him
“ go far as the terms of that compact extend. ¢ I allow of any kind of deceit,’ says
« he, ‘perfily alone excopted, not because anything is unlawful against an enemy,
¢ ¢ hut because when our ?ait-h has been pledged Lo him, so far as the promise extends
“ ¢ he ceases to be an enemy.’ Indeed, without this mitigation, the horrovs of war
« wonld beindefinite in extent and interminable in duration The usage of civilized
“ pations has therefore introduced certain commercine belli, Ly which the violence of
“ war may be allayed, so far as is consistent with its ebjects and purposes, and
“ gomething of a pacific intercourse may be kept up, which muy lead, in time, to an
" adjustment of differences, and ultimately to peace.”
And again, loc, cit., 8. 644: ¢ If an abstract right be in question between the
“ parties, on which the treaty of peace is silent, it follows that all previous coms-
“ plaints and injury, arising under such claim, are thrown into oblivion by the am-
“ nesty, necessarily implied, if not expressed; but the claim itself iy not thersby
“ gottied either one way or the other.”
Woolsey (Introduction to the study of International Law, «. 107) suys: ©.vesaee
“ But Bynkershoek defended another opinion which is now the received one among
“ the text-writers, and which Wheaton has advocated at large with great ability.
“Tf the minister has conformed at once to his ostensible powers and to his sceret iu-
“ gtructions, there is no doubt that in ordinary cuses it would be bad faith in the
“ sovereign not to add his ratitication. But if the minister disobuys or transeends
“ his instructions, the sovoreign may vefuse his sanction to the treaty without Lad
“faith or ground of complaint on the other side. But even this violation of seerct
“ instructions would be no valid excuse for the sovereign’s vefusing fo uccept the treaty,
““ if he should have given public credentials of 2 miinute and specitic churacter to his
“agent; for the evident intention in so doing would be to vonvey an impression to
:‘ the dther party that he is making a sincere declaration of the terms on which he
‘I8 willing to treat.” :
... Speaking of civil war, he says (s 136) : “The sume rules of war ave reguired
y In such & war 48 in any other—the same ways of ﬁgh.nng, the »umo treatment ot
 Prisouers, of combatants, of non-combatants and of private, property by the army
. Where it passes: so also natural justice demands 1he =ume veracity wind fuithfuluess
which are binding in the intercourse of all mornl beings.
« . ' Nations thus treating rebels, by no meaus concede thereby that they form a
« State, or that they are de fucto such. There is u difterence between helligerents
and belligorent States, which has been too much overlooked.
« .« “When a war ends to the disadvantage of tho insnrgents, municipal law may
« elench the nail which war has driven, may hang, after legal process, instecad of
« B!lC'_Otin r, and confiscate tho whole instead of plundering a part. But & wise and
. Givilized nation will exercise only so much of this legal vengeance, as the interosts
of lasting ovder imperiously demand.” -
« o At 8 146, ho says: “The possibility of intercourse in wur Jdepends on the con-
. Bdence which the belligerents repose in cach other’s good thith, and this confi-
" dence, on the unchangeable sacredness of truth. Fven Bynkershoek, who allows
« 2¥ery kind of violenco and every kind of craft, has to say, in words nlready cited,
;(kego quidem omnom dolum permitto, sola pertidia execpta.’ Thut fuith should bo
“ k"Pt with heretics has been denied, but no one has maintained that it is not to he
®pt with enemies.
«. . Such being the undoubted principle of obligation in war as woll as jn poace,
5 ral' is onabled to put on a milder form, for that reason, and fo infcz-rnpt its .vio-
%ncs for a time, elther towards particular persons or entirely.” * * *
11—5 83 .
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And again (8. 153): “The effect of u treaty on all grounds of complaint for
“ which a war was undertaken, is to abandon them; or, in other words, all peace
“implies amnesty or oblivion of all past subjects of dispute, whether the same is
“ gxpressly mentioned in the terms of the treaty or not. They cannot in good faith
“be rovived again, although n repetition of the same acts may be a righteous
«“ ground of a new wur. Al alstract or goneral right, howevor, it passed over in a
# treaty, it not thereby waived.” '

Now, if the rules laid down by those writers arc to be taken ax law, a3 un-
doubtedly they are, because they are adopted by all writers on the subject, and
more particularly beeauwse (hey ure based upon justice and equity, could it be pre-
tended that a general amnesty is not due to all puariies implicated in the North-Woest
difficulties?

Have those parties a right to claim it?

Is it not true: :

1. That the{ were assured, by the vepreseutative of the Goverimnont, that the
amnesty would be granted on certain conditions?

2. E‘hat that fact was commaunicated to the Govornment of Canala, which acted
on it and benefitted by it? -

3, That the least that can be said, is, that the delegales of those parvtics, and
through them the insurgonts themselves; were made to telieve that if they would
do as they have afterwavds done, they would get amunesty without restriction ?

4. That the stipulated conditions have beendfultilled by the insurgents and ac-
cepted by the Government? :

There can but he an affirmutive answiyg to each these of questions,

Lt~Governor Archibuld xtates in his ‘evidence: “The people were undoubtedly
# gpnvinced that there was to bLe amamnesty, T could not form any conclusion as
‘ {o whether or not the people would have taken a different lino if they had not
« been satisfied that there was to bo an amnesty.”

In their address to Lieutenunt-Governor Archibald, the inhabitants of the parish
of St, Norbert said : * Your Kxcellency will novertheless allow us to say that we
“ must not conceal from you that an essential fenture is still wanting; we, never-
¢ theless, expect it with confidence, secing that it hax been promised wx by men whose
« yords were never spoken tn vain. Your Excellgney in purson has assured us that all
i that has been guaranteed by treaty cannot but be granted.”

Do not all the facts and eircumstances prove the vonviction and belief of those

»arties ?

! Another reason why, according (o all laws, & general amnesty should be grantedd,
is that Mr. Avchibald, as Licutenant.Governor of Manitoha und er Mujesty’s ropre-
gentative, during the Fenian invasion of October, 1871, accepted the services of Riel
and other leaders of the insurrection, to organize their compatriots, over whom they
were known to have an immense influcnwe. e exchanged eorrespondence with
them, promised them protection if they would he]ij Lo repel the Fenians, und after
they hal brought their friends logether, he met them, congratulatod them, shook
hagds with them, and oulisted them to serve aguinst an enemy of Iler Majexty who
wan then invading the conntry. He communicated all those facts to the Canadian
(iovernment by his memorandum, No. 110, ' :

Referring to the mattor in hiv evidence, e suys @ © Ou looking buck, I soe
“ nothing in the course I took that gives me any doubt ay to its correctness.

« would take it again under the like circumstances.  If the Dominion have ut this mo-
“ ment @ Province to defend, and not one to conguer, they owe it to the policy of for-
“ bearance,” ctc. '

Now, cun it be maintained that after Her Majesty’s Governnent had requested
and accepted the services of these men, whose conduct, in those Jdays of excitement,
prevented & large portion of the North-West population from joining the invaders,
and thus contributed to disconrage and repel the enemy, and “to keep thut Province
i in the Domain of Her Mujesty,”’ according to Mr. Architald’s own exprosgion,—that
they are still to treatod as robols, and é-efuscd an amnesty which has already been
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promised to them? T cannot believe it; such a policy would be unprecedented in
the history of England, and, in my opinion, a misfortune. :

When Lord Kimberley sent his despatch of the 24th of July, 1873, offering, in
the name of the Tmperial Government, to issuc a proclamation not applying to all
the parties implicated in those troubles, he. undoubtedly, considered the case as an
ordinary one. and, like many Canadians, had no knowledge of tho facta disclosed by
the Report of the Committee of the Honse of Commons on the North-West difficul-
ties; for had he known such facts, he wonld certauinly have acted otherwise, I
have no doubt that it iz the duty of the Canudian Government to submit that
evidence to the Timperial ttovernment, and to recommend the adoption of the policy
to which Canada has been pledged by the acts of hor representatives. I doubt not
that, after fal} information of all the civeumstancer, the Imperial Government will
tind it their duty to proclaim a general ammesty, exionding to all parties implic ated
aud covering all acts perpetrated by them as insurgents in the North-West distur-
bancos during tho years 1869 and 1870, without eXception or restriction, foy the
above mentioned reasons, _ -

Moreqver, it appears, both from the evidonce of many of the Fnglish settlera
before the Committeo, and from the addresses unanimously adopted by the two
Houses of the Manitoba Legislature, in their session of 1872, and upon which is
based thoir petition to Ier Majesty, —that the two races and the inhabitants of
Manitoba generally, understand that an amnexty was pidmired, and are anxious that
_tho matter rhoulil bo definitively sottled, and, as they say in their pafition, that all
questions connected with those troubles should be set ut vest,

Orrawas, 1st October, 1874,

35



38 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 11.) A. 1876,

—_—

Copy—(No. 9.) :
DowNiNG STREET, Tth January, 1875,
My Lorp,—

I received, on the 29th uitimo, your despatch No. 805 of the 10th Dec-
ember, transmitting a copy of an Order-in-Council, in which your Ministers
request that Her Majesty’s Government will deal, in such & way as ex-
isting circumstances may seem to justify, with the whole question of the
offences. committed by Riel, Lepine and others in the North-West Terri-
tories of the Dominion, in 1869 and 1870, '

2. This question has now passed into a stage requiring that it shounld
be disposed of without delay, inasmuch as Lepine, one of the principal
parties to the brutal and atrocious murder which formed the most no-
torious feature of the rebellion in Manitoba, now, lies under sentence
of death for that crime, and it has become necessary to decide not only
whether the extreme penalty of the law should be inflicted in his case,
but also what course should be taken in the corresponding case of Riel,
in the event of his submitting himself, or being brought to justice.

8, I fully recognize the force of the considerations which lead the
Dominion Government to think that this is a case with which it is difficult,
for several ressons into which I need not now enter in detail, for the
Local Administration to deal ; and I should have been prepared to instruct
vou tormally on the subject, if, after considering the question in the
altered aspect in which it is now presented to me, I were of opinion that
such a course would be the most convenient. .

4. There are, however, obvious objections, notwithstanding the full
confidence which Her Majesty's Government are able to place in the com-
pleteness and impartiality of your very able exposition of the circum-
stances connected with this case, to their undertaking the decisionof a
quesfion which can be thoroughly understood in all its bearings by those
only who, residing on the spot, are familiar with every detail of it.

It is on account of the almost insuperable difficulty of ensuring a just
and prudent decision on the part of persons who live at a distance, and
are of necessity imperfectly acquainted with facts and opinious, that the
Queen delegates to the Governors of her Colonies the administration of
the prerogative of mercy in regard to cases arising within them; and I am
clearly of opinion that in the thirty-ninth paragraph of your despatch you
rightly indicate, as I have already intimated to you by telegraph, the
course which it would he most correct to follow, namely that, acting under
the powers vested in you by the Royal Instructions, yon should yourself
determine ‘whether the sentence passed on Lepine should be carried out
or modified. You observe that you propose to act in this matter on your
own responsibility ; and I helieve that by proceeding in that manner in the
present instance, that is to say, by relieving your Ministers, under the very
peculiar circumstances in which they are placed, from the obligation
under which they would lie, if the question were an ordinary one, of
tendering advice to vou respecting it, and by deciding according to your
own individual judgment, you will best meet the requirements of the
case '

5. But although, for the reasons which I have siated, I think it
preferable that sush action as may be taken should be formally and
: 36
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technically your own and not that of Her Majesty’s Government, I am
uite willing to give you thot assistance and support, which, as I gather
om the third paragraph of your despatch, you and your Ministers

consider that a dispassionate review of the whole question, accompanied
by some expreesion of opinion on the part of this Government, would

" render; and I do this the more readily because it is pre-eminently a
question as to which an impartial expression of carefully considered
opinion from an authority which, although not directly connected with the
many personal, political, religious, antt national feelings that have boen
aronsed, is not the less deeply interested in the maintenance of a
harmonious relationship between the members of the Dominion, may be
usefu).

6. I will, thorefore, at once proceed to state briefly the conclusion® at

- which I have arrived on the whole subject, and which I have laid before
Her Mgjesty as, in my humble opinion, combining justice and mercy in
the highest degree compatible with those conditions of public policy
which cannot be wholly overlooked; and it is with much satisfaction
that I find myself able to agree with the course which vou have yourself
determined to be proper in the event of the considerations which have
appeared to justify an amnesty not being found on examination such
as to warrant the entire condonation of the crimes which have been
committed. .

7. Following then the order in which you have treated the subject,

I may observe, in the first place, that it is obvious that neither the
proclamation intended to be issued, but from certain causes not published,
at Fort Garry in 1869, nor the correspondence cited in paragraphs 4 to 7
of your despatch, are in any way applicable to the condition of affairs
which arose when, some time subsequently, the atrocions murder of

. Scott was committed. Nor can anything promised to the murderers
{although in good faith) by Archbishop Taché, nor any impression or

understanding that he or others may have formed of the purport of

conversations or communications with individual Ministers, be deemed to
ave in any way pledged the Crown to extend an amnesty to acts which
had not even been heard of by the Dominion Government, when he

Teceived the letters instructing him as to his proceedings at Fort Garry,

and which on full examination could not fail to appear to be such as the
ueen (if the Imperial Government should be required tfo act) could not be

8qvised o leave unpunished. As Archbishop Taché’s connection with
is affair constitutes the first of the five reasons alleged for amnesty, I

Will now dispose of it by observing that with all respect for his honesty

214 good intentions, it is impossible to admit that he had any sufficient

%round for believing that the Crown, or the Colonial Government actin
or the Crown, did or could delegate to him, or to anv other unofficia

Person, orindeed to anvone, as to a Plenipotentiary, an unlimited power

o pardoning crimes, of whatever atrocity, not even known to kave been

®Ommitted. = And vour opinion that the Urown is in no way committed by

8y promises given by Archbishop Taché is the only one whichI can

Consider tenshle. '

1 8. As to the second plea, based upon alleged conversations held in
870 by Abbé Ritchot, Archbishop Taché and others, with the Governer
eneral and Members of the Dominion (tovernment, I had occasion some
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time ago to examine the statements made on both sides, and I formed then,
and still hold the distinct opinion' that the misapprehension on the part of
Abbé Ritchot (from whatever cause it proceeded) of the statements made
to him, was so complete as to have led him entirely to' misrepresent not
¢nly the views but the langunage of the Governor General and of other
officers of the Government If Iin any degree qualify -this statement in
- g0 far as it may be applicable to certdin inaccurate or too encouragi
observations which anay have fallen from the late Sir G. Cartier, and W%:il(:%
may possibly (although of this there is no adequate evidence,) have been
such as reasonably to lead Abbé Ritchot to entertain too sanguine a hope
as to the result of his advocacy, I must at the same time place on record
my belief that Sir G- Cartier is sufficiently shown to have recollected the
extent of his powers and of his duty to his Government, and to-have on
one occasion at least clearly explained that he could not promise or
gunaraniee any pardon.

' 9. The third plea that the murderers of Scott represented a de facto
Government, and are consequently excusable on political grounds, is one
which I cannot for a moment entertain. There could be within the
Queen's possessions in North America no power or pretonce of establishing
a de faclo Government, independent of, or defying Her Majesty and Her
officers, which could aspire to any such immunity as that claimed; and
any argument based on the view of such a state of things being possible,
is in my opinion not even worthy of discussion.

10. Nor am I able to take into consideration the grounds alleged, in the
" fourth place, in the 28th and 29th paragraphs of your despatch. ’%hey‘ seem
to me to have no bearing on the question at issue. I proceed therefore atonce
to the fifth place, whicﬁ is based upon the dealings of Lieutsnant-Governor
Archibald with the murderers of Scott, when (in 1871), with very inade-
quate means at his disposal, he felt himself constrained to avail himself of
everything within his reach to repel the Fenian invasion, then seriously
threatening his Provinoce.

11. Admitting that Mr. Archibald dealt with these persons as with
~ any other members of the community, received valuable assistance from

them, and not only formally thanked them, but promised them a tempo-
rary immunity from the consequences of their crime; I feel no hesitation
in concluding that neither these transactions, nor even any further promise
{if he had made one), of endeavouring to procure for them an amnesty, can
be held to have placed the Crown under any obligation absolutely to con-
done go disgraceful a crime as that which they had committed.

12. Mr. Archibald cannot, in my opinion, be held to have represented
the Crown in such a way as to have had any power of pledging its tuture
action in regard to such transactions as those now under review. The
Lieutenaut Governors of the Provinces of the Dominion, however impor-
tant locally their functions may be, are a part of the Colonial Administra-
tive Staff, and are more immediately responsible to the Grovernor Greneral
in Council. They do not hold commissions from the Crown, and neither
in power mnor privilege resemble those Governors, or even Lieutenant
Governors of Colonies to whom, after special consideration of their
personal fitness, the Queen, under the Great Seal and Her own hand and
signet, delegates portions of Her prerogatives and issues Her own instrue-
tions. But I do not desire to lay stress npon this point, because in dealing
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with ignorant and half educated people, it is obviously desirable that due
recognition should, as far as possible, be given to any acts or promises
which may reasonably be thought to bind or pledge either the Colonial or
Imperial Government. - _

But, thinking, as I do, that the services rendered by these offenders in
1871 deserve to carry considerable weight, and- should be liberally taken
into consideration when justice has to be executed with respect to their
previous offences; and admitling, indeed, that it is as imnpossible to permit
the extreme sentence of death to be inflicted upon persons who have been
recoguized and dealt with as they have, as it is to allow thein to go unpun-
ished, I feel that the question which I have to consider is, not whether
they should be amnestied (for that is not to be heard of), but what kind of
punishment will be just and reasonable in all the peculiar and conflicting
circunmstances of thelr casé. :

18. One of them has now been found guilty of murder oy a jury, the
composition of which was such as to secure an impartial consideration of
everything that could be fairly urged on his behalf. And whilst I entirely
concur in the justice of the verdictin Lepine’s case, I cannot entertain the
opinion that Riel, whose guilt was certainly not less, conld be subjected to
any less punishment than that which may be inflicted on Lepine.

14. On the whole, after a most anxious considération of the whole
question, I have come to the conclusion that you will act with both clem-
ency and of]'ustice if you carry out the view expressed in the concluding
portion your despatch, that the capital sentence of Lepine should be
sommuted. You do not state what amount of imprisonment you would
consider a proper commutation, but I assume that you contemplate a term
gufficient to.mark distinctly the sense which both the Crown and all right-
minded men must entertain that his offence has been such as cannot be
allowed to pass ‘without substantial punishment. Whenever Riel submits
himself, or is brought to justice, it would seem right that he should suffer
a similar punishment to that of Lepine,

15. 1 have now explained to you the view taken by MHer Majesty’s
‘Government of the dificult question with which you are called upon to
deal. You will remember that my predecessor intimated to you that Her
Majesty's advisers were of opinion that the murder of Scoit must be ex-
cepted from the list of offences connected with the Red River disturbances
for which an amnesty could be granted. And I feel confident that, as in
the commencement of your despatch you encoyrage me to hope, a loyal
acquiescence will be secured among the large majority of the Queen’s
Canadian subjects, in the opinion that although a murder such as that of
Scott cannot be allowed fo go unpunished, on the ground that it was con-
nected with political disturbances, yet, in so far as it did result from
political circumstances, those who were guilty of il may be deemed fo have
earned a merciful consideration through their subsequent good service to
the State, and that for those services their lives should be. spared. You
- will readily understand that in thus expressing to you a distinet opinion
on the part of Her Majesty’s Government, I am conveying the assurance
of that support from without, which you have desired, and on which yon
may. rely in the difficult circumstances in which you are placed. :

16, There yet remains a further question, whether it should not be a
~ condition of any commutation of sentence, that those actually concerned

) 89 ' :
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in the murder of Scott should be deprived of the power of takng part in

-political affairs within the Dominion. Tt has been a source of much pain
to many who, like mysclf, take pride in the public institutions of Canada,
to hear of the Legislature being disgraced by the election to the House
of Commons and the presence within its walls of a criminal like Riel;
and 1 wholly fail to understand how any section of the Canadian people,
of whatever race or creed, can so far mistake the true character of these
unhappy proceedings as to throw over them the colour of patriotism. 1
should not therefore think it unreasonable, while it would undoubtedly
conduce to a higher tone of coustitutional morality, that the liberation
of the criminals after the expiration of their commuted sentencs, shonld
be accompanied by some stringent conditions as to their good conduet, if
they remasin in any part of Canada, and by their total exclusion from any
patticipation in political or parliamentary lifv.

Anticipating that vour Ministers will share this opinion, I request
you to consult them as to the manner in which such political disabillity
as I have referred to may best be enforced.

’ I have, &c.,
(Signed,) CARNARVON,
Governor-General,
The Right Honorable
The Barl of Dufferin, X.I”, K.('.B,,
&ec., &e., &,

TR G RAMS

The Earl of Carnarvon le the Earl of Dufferin, Jau. 14th, 1815,

My despatch on Lepine sent last week approves your dispensing with
Ministers' advice in ‘accordance with your powers under instructions,
intimates that neither amnesty nor eniire pardon possible, but commutation
approved. Ricl should have similar punishment. Tolitical disability
desirable. Telegraph if you desire further information. '

' CARNARVON,

The Earl of Dufferin to the Earl of Carnarvon, January 20th, 1876.

Guided by the consideralion set torth in my despatch to your Lordship
of the 10th December, I directed my Minister of Justice, on the fifteenth
of January, to take steps for the commutation of the capital sentence on
Lepine into two years' imprisonment and the lorfeiture of his political rights.

DurrFERIN.

The Earl of Carnarvon (0 the Larl of Dufferin, Goveinor General, Canadd,
January 26k, _ '

I fully approve course taken by you in Lepine’s case.
CARNARVON,
40
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CANADA.

————————

{Copy—No. 17.)
" MONTREAL, 28th January, 1875.

My LOBD~

I have the honor to enclose, for your Lordship's information 2 number
of extracts and leading articles from the various newspapers in the
Dominion, both French and English, on the commutation of the capital
sentence passed on Ambroise Lepine, _

9. It cannot but give satislaction to your Lordship to perceive with
what general acquiescence the terms of the commutation have been ac-
captetf Although the circumstances of the case deeply touched the feel-
'#ﬁ of both the English and French sections of the population, and

orded ample room for controversy and differencesof opinion, there has
en scarcely anything approaching to angry or violent comment, either
upon the one side or the other, It has been universally felt that the
subject was one of very great difficulty, and the moderation exhibited in
all quarters is of the happiest augury for the fature.
* 78. Personally I cannot help feeling deeply sensible of the confidence
exhibited by the population, with whom I hayve the happiness of being
sonnected, in the impartiality and soundness of the decision it has become

my duty to arrive at in conmection with this grave and momentous
Watter :

I have, &e¢.,

(S8igned,)  DUFFERIN.
The Right Honorable _
'%he Ear]l of Carnarvon,
Colonial Office.

11--§
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{No. 20,
' (oveErRNMENT Housk, .
OtTawa, 3rd February, 1875.
My Lorp,—

In continuation of my correspondence in reference to the case of
Lepine, I have the honor to inform your Lordship that I have received
numerous petitions praying for a commutaticn of his sentence. These
petitions, with very few exceptions, have been drawn up in the several
towns and villages of the Province of Quebec, and the signatures show
that the petitioners were in almost all cases of French origin. The num-
ber of petitions received amount to two hundred and fifty-two (252), bear-
ing fifty-eight thousand five hundred and sixty-eight signatures (58,568).

1 observe that several of the signatures are in the same hand-writing,
but I have reason to believe that they have been in most, if not in all
cases, appended by the priest or other person emgaged in preparing tho
petition, at the desire of those whose names they bear,

1 hlave, &e.,

(Signed,) DUFFERIN
The Right Honorable

The Ea1l of Carnarvon,
&ec., &c, &c
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GoverNMENT HoUsE,
January15th, 1875,

S1R,—1 am commanded by the Governor General to inform you that His
Excellency has had under his full and anxious consideration the evidence
and other documents connected with the trial of Ambroise Lepine, who has
been capitally convicted before the Court of Assize held at Winnipeg on
the 10th day of October, 1874, of the murder of Thomas Scott, on the 4th
of March, 1870, at Fort Garry. '

Although His Excellency entirely agrees with the finding of the Jury,
and considers that the crime, of which the prisoner Lepine has been con-
victed, was nothing less than a cruel and unjustifiable murder, he is of
opinion that subsequent circumstances, and, notably, the relations into
which the Provincial authorities of Manitoba entered with the prisoner
and his axsociates, are such as, in a great degree, to fvtter the hands of
justice. :

It farther appears to Ilis Excellency that the case has passed beyond
the provinee of Departmental administration, and that it will . be best
dealt with under the Royal Instructions, which authorize the Governor
General, in certain capital cascs, to dispense with the advice of his Min-
isters, and to vxercise the prevomative of the Crown according to his inde-
pertdent judgment, and on his own _personal respousibility.

T have it, therefore, in command to inform you that it is His Excellency’s
-pleasure that the capital sentence passed upon the prisoner Lepine be com-
muted into two years of imprisonment in gaol from the date of conviction,
and the permanent forfeiture of his po]iticali rights.

Tis Excellency desires that the neeessary instrament for giving eflect
to this commmntation be forthwith prepared.

I have the honor to be, Sir,
Your most obedient hmnble servant,

H. (. FLETCHER,

Governor General’s Secrelery.
To the Honorable

The Minister of Justice,
Ottawa.
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No. 9.
GovERNMENT Housk, OTTAWA,
Janunary 18th, 1876.

My Lorp,—In further reference to previous correspondence, I have the
honor to enclose, for your Lordship’s information, a copy of a communica-
tion I have addressed to the Honorable Telesphore Fournier, my Minister
of Justice, instrueting him to commnute the capital sentence recently passed
on Ambroise Lepine, into imprisonment {or two years in gaol, and the per-
manent forfeiture of his political rights.

2. In thus dispensing with the advice of my responsible Ministers, and
exercising the Queen's prerogative according to my own judgment, T am
aware | have undertaken a very grave responsibility, more especially as
the facts and considerations by which the issue has to be determined are
of a very complex and embarassing character. Upon these, howerver, I will
not enlarge as they have already been fully set forth in former despatches.

8. I am quite convinced that the matter is one which, in the general
interests of this country, will have been best dealt with by my direct action.

4. Although the commuted sentence may appear very inadequate to
the enormity of the crime, of which it is the punishment, 1 believe it to be
such as will best satisfy the conflicting exigencies of the case.

1 have the honor to be, My Lord,
Your Lordship's most obedient
Humble Servant,
VUPFRBIN.
To the Right Honorable

The Secretary of State for the
Colonies.



